
AGENDA PAPERS FOR
HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD MEETING

Date: Friday, 15 April 2016

Time:  10.00 a.m.

Place:  Sale West Conference Centre, 120 Manor Avenue, Sale, M33 5JX.

A G E N D A  PART I Pages 

1. ATTENDANCES  

To note attendances, including officers, and any apologies for absence.

2. MINUTES  

To receive and if so determined, to approve as a correct record the Minutes 
of the meetings held on 17 March 2016 and 21 March 2016.

(a)  17 March 2016  1 - 2

(b)  21 March 2016  3 - 4

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

Members to give notice of any interest and the nature of that interest relating 
to any item on the agenda in accordance with the adopted Code of Conduct.

4. GM DEVOLUTION: TAKING CHARGE - HEALTH & SOCIAL CARE 
UPDATE / TRAFFORD LOCALITY PLAN  - UPDATE  

To receive a verbal update of the Chief Clinical Officer, NHS Trafford Clinical 
Commissioning Group.

Verbal 
Report

5. BETTER CARE FUND 2016/17  

To consider a report of the Better Care Fund Programme. 5 - 18

Public Document Pack



Health and Wellbeing Board - Friday, 15 April 2016

6. JOINT LEARNING DISABILITY STRATEGY  

To consider a report of the Interim Director of All Age Commissioning. 19 - 30

7. PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT 2015  

To consider a report of the Director of Public Health. 31 - 50

8. INCREASING PHYSICAL ACTIVITY  

To consider a presentation of the Director of Public Health and the Sport & 
Physical Activity Relationship Manager. 51 - 58

9. DOMESTIC ABUSE REPORT  

To receive a report of the Head of Communities & Partnerships. 59 - 64

10. HEALTH AND WELLBEING PERFORMANCE DASHBOARD REPORTS  

To receive the following performance dashboard reports for information:

(a)  Safer Trafford Partnership Update  65 - 82

(b)  Strategic Sport & Physical Activity Partnership Update  83 - 88

(c)  Increasing Healthy Life Expectancy  89 - 98

11. TRAFFORD PHARMACEUTICAL NEEDS ASSESSMENT (PNA) REFRESH  

To receive a report of the Director of Public Health. 99 - 106

12. URGENT BUSINESS (IF ANY)  

Any other item or items which by reason of special circumstances (to be 
specified) the Chairman of the meeting is of the opinion should be considered 
at this meeting as a matter of urgency.

THERESA GRANT
Chief Executive

Membership of the Committee

Dr N. Guest (Chairman), Councillor A. Williams (Vice-Chairman), Chief Inspector V.
Bellamy, R. Bellingham, J. Colbert, S. Colgan, A. Day, Councillor J. Harding, G.
Heaton, Councillor M. Hyman, G. Lawrence, M. McCourt, S. Nicholls, B. Postlethwaite,
A. Razzaq, S. Webster and A. Worthington.



Health and Wellbeing Board - Friday, 15 April 2016

Further Information
For help, advice and information about this meeting please contact:

Chris Gaffey, Democratic and Scrutiny Officer 
Tel: 0161 912 2019
Email: chris.gaffey@trafford.gov.uk 

This agenda was issued on Thursday 7 April 2016 by the Legal and Democratic 
Services Section, Trafford Council, Trafford Town Hall, Talbot Road, Stretford,
M32 0TH. 



This page is intentionally left blank



1

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD (INQUORATE MEETING)

17 MARCH 2016

PRESENT 

S. Colgan, A. Day, Dr N. Guest, Councillor J. Harding, Councillor M. Hyman, 
A. Razzaq, S. Webster, Councillor A. Williams and A. Worthington

In attendance
J. Colbert
L. Dabbs
C. Gaffey
S. Grant

Acting Corporate  Director, Children, Families & Wellbeing
Partnerships Officer
Democratic & Scrutiny Officer
Senior Partnerships and Communities Officer

Cllr Mrs J. Lloyd Shadow Lead Member for Integration of  Health & SC
Cllr B. Shaw
R. Spearing

Lead Member for Integration of Health and Social Care
Integrated Network Director, Pennine Care FT

APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from J. Heaton, M. McCourt, S. Nicholls and 
B. Postlethwaite

47. ATTENDANCES 

RESOLVED: That in accordance with Procedure Rule 8e of the Trafford Council 
Constitution, the meeting was declared inquorate and all business was adjourned 
to a new meeting to be held at 6:00pm on Monday 21 March 2016 at Trafford 
Town Hall.

The meeting commenced at 1.50 pm and finished at 1.52 pm

Page 1

Agenda Item 2a



This page is intentionally left blank



1

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

21 MARCH 2016

PRESENT 

Cllr A. Williams (in the Chair) Executive Member for Adult Social Services & CW
J. Colbert
M. Colledge

Acting Corporate Director, Children, Families & Wellbeing
Chair, NHS Trafford CCG

Cllr J. Harding Shadow Exec Member for Adult Social Services and CW
Cllr M. Hyman Executive Member for Children's Services
G. Lawrence Chief Operating Officer, NHS Trafford CCG
A. Razzaq Director of Public Health

In attendance
J. Crossley
C. Gaffey

Associate Director of Commissioning, Trafford CCG
Democratic & Scrutiny Officer

Cllr Mrs J. Lloyd Shadow Lead Member for Integration of  H&SC
R. Spearing Integrated Network Director, Pennine Care FT

APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from A. Day, Dr N. Guest, S. Webster and A. 
Worthington.

48. MINUTES 

RESOLVED: That the Minutes of the meeting held on 22 January 2016, be 
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

49. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Interest was declared by Councillor Joanne Harding who is a Senior Manager at 
Self Help Services, a mental health crisis service which is commissioned in 
Trafford. Councillor Harding also declared a second interest, as she is now on the 
Board of Trustees for Trafford Carers.
 
Interest was declared by Councillor Mrs Judith Lloyd, who is a Trustee of Trafford 
Domestic Abuse Services.

50. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

The Chair of the Trafford Clinical Commissioning Group apologised for the 
circumstances which led to the adjournment of the meeting on 17 March, and 
assured the Board that processes were now in place to ensure similar situations 
would not arise in future.

51. LOCALITY PLAN - PRESENTATION AND ENDORSEMENT 

The Board were presented with Trafford’s Locality Plan for their endorsement. 
Board members recognised the considerable amount of work that had gone into 
creating the Plan, and welcomed the opportunity to formally endorse it. The Plan 
would now be submitted to the Greater Manchester Devolution Team pending the 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2b



Health and Wellbeing Board 
21 March 2016

2

required endorsement by the Executive, and focus would move onto the Plan’s 
implementation.

Going forward, the Health and Wellbeing Board would receive quarterly reports on 
performance against the Locality Plan’s set targets. Work on formulating the 
performance indicators was ongoing, and Board members’ input on how these 
were built would be essential. A draft report providing more detail on the 
performance indicators would be brought to the meeting in April.

RESOLVED: That the Trafford Locality Plan be endorsed by the Board.

52. REPORT ON THE PROTECTION OF SOCIAL CARE ELEMENT OF THE 
BETTER CARE FUND FOR TRAFFORD 

The Board received a report of the Better Care Fund Programme providing an 
overview on the protection of the social care element of the Better Care Fund for 
Trafford.

It was noted that this report was specific to the 2015/16 Better Care Fund, and 
work was ongoing to improve the report format for 2016/17. A better 
understanding of high impact areas had provided a clearer understanding of the 
programme’s position, and this would be reflected in future reports. The new 
report would be brought to the Board’s next meeting in April.

RESOLVED: That the Health & Wellbeing Board approve the content of the 
report.

The meeting commenced at 6.00 pm and finished at 6.27 pm

Page 4



TRAFFORD COUNCIL

Report to: Health & Wellbeing Board 
Date: 6th April 2016
Report for: Health & Wellbeing Board 
Report of: Better Care Fund Programme 

Report Title

Progress Report of Better Care Fund for Trafford, and overview of plan for 16/17

Purpose

This is to provide the Health and Wellbeing Board an update of the progress of the 
Better Care Fund for Trafford in 15/16, and an overview of the planning process, and 
the content for the plan for 16/17.
 

Recommendations

The Health and Wellbeing Board are asked to:

 note the progress outlined in the attached paper for 15/16
 note the schedule for 16/17 BCF planning and assurance

Contact person for access to background papers and further information:

Name: Julie Crossley, Associate Director of Commissioning at Trafford CCG.

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



Trafford Better Care Fund Programme

1. Introduction

1.1 The Health and Wellbeing Board have received previous reports which set out the schemes which 
contribute to the Better Care Fund programme for Trafford. This is the latest report which provides 
update on the individual schemes and areas which have been addressed by the Steering group.

1.2 The Better Care fund is set out in the CCG’s strategic plan as this will be a main contributor to 
reducing unscheduled care activity and shifting activity from the acute sector into the community. As 
set out in 2015/16, Trafford commissioners are seeking to reduce activity by 3.5%.

1.3 All the schemes for 15/16 are focused on the Frail and Older people, with the schemes supporting 
this cohort of patients to keep their independence and to support individuals remaining in their own 
homes with services wrapped around them to support them in the community.

1.4 This report provides an overall summary of the 15/16 programme and details of the latest 
highlight report and financial position.

1.5 Also contained in this report are details of the 16/17 planning process, and an outline of the 
content for the 16/17 plan.

2. The Better Care Steering Group

2.1 The Steering group responsibility is to monitor progress, address any risks/barriers to 
improvement.  Progress has been made in terms of collecting and analysing risks at both an individual 
scheme level and overall. Any significant risks (in terms of likelihood and impact) will be reported to 
the HWB.

2.2 The latest version of the live risks are shown in Appendix 2. Currently there are no significant 
risks to report at programme level. Individual scheme risks are reported in section 3 of this report.

2.3 There has been a change to the terms of reference for the BCF Steering Group. This group now 
reports via the Joint Commissioning Board to the HWB.

2.4 National Support for Logic Modelling – An event took place on 9th March 2016 which was 
arranged jointly by Trafford CCG / Council and the Midlands and Lancashire Commissioning Support 
Unit. The half day event was well attended, with 21 attendees from a mix of Council, CCG and 
Pennine employees. The event was essentially ‘on the job training’ to think in a logical way about 
how we plan and build models.  There were very useful conversations had around integration of 
health and social care, delayed transfers of care, building a data dashboard across several 
organisations. The learning from this training is being taken forward and an initial version of a Logic 
Model is under development for the 16/17 Better Care Fund plan.

Page 6



3. Update on Progress for 15/16

3.1 Scheme Performance Overview:

Scheme Status
1. Integration of Health and Social Care On-going

2. End of Life Phase 1 – implemented

3. Community Nursing Phase 1 to be implemented April

4. Falls Phase 1 – April

5. ATT Currently being implemented 

6. Care Homes – Enhanced Primary 
Medical Services

Interim Implemented- phase 2 to be part 
of new models of care for Primary care

7. Intermediate Care Phase 1 implemented – progressing 
phase 2

The latest highlight report that has been tabled at the BCF Steering group can be viewed in 
Appendix 1. This gives a narrative update on each of the existing schemes for 15/16. 

4. Better Care Fund Planning 16/17

4.1 For 2016/17 Trafford have been allocated a total of £16,092K. This is made up of 
revenue funding from the CCG and from Disabled Facilities Grant. This makes up the 
minimum pooled fund that the CCG and Local Authority will have in place for the Better Care 
Fund.

4.2 In terms of the planning process for 16/17, the steering group have already submitted an 
initial planning template, and a draft narrative plan for 16/17. The full narrative plan is still 
being compiled, and the planning return template that reflects the finances and metrics for 
the plan will also need to be updated.

The high level timetable for returns for local Better Care Fund plans is as follows:

Date Description Status
2 March Local areas to submit only the completed BCF Planning Return 

template detailing the technical elements of the planning requirements, 
including funding contributions, a scheme level spending plan, national 
metric plans, and any local risk sharing agreement.

COMPLETE

21 March First submission of full narrative plans for Better Care alongside a 
second submission of the BCF Planning Return template.

COMPLETE

25 April Final submission, once formally signed off by the Health and Wellbeing 
Board. 

In progress

As the table sets out, there must be sign off from the HWB of the 16/17 Narrative Plan and 
Planning Return Template. The local timetable for sign off is set out below.

Page 7



Date of Meeting Group Update / Planned
21st March BCF Steering Group Approval of submissions:

1. BCF planning spreadsheet
2. BCF Narrative plan

Agreement of process for signing off the 16/17 plan, and 
document

15th April Health and Wellbeing 
Board

Progress report to the HWB on 15/16 BCF performance

Overview of process and outline of 16/17 BCF 
submission.

22nd April Joint Commissioning 
Board

Approval of final version of BCF submission.

25th April BCF Steering Group Final day for submission – feedback from JCB, changes 
made and agreement reached.

25th April Health and Wellbeing 
Board

Final approval of submission by HWB. Submission 
made.

Page 8



4.3 Regional Assurance.

During this time period, there is also a regional based assurance programme. The outcome 
of this will be that the plan that is submitted will be scored according to a number of key lines 
of enquiry that are clearly set out in the planning guidance. The possible scores that can be 
achieved for the plans are:

 not approved
 approved with support
 Approved

5. BCF Plan for 16/17

5.1 The key components of our 16/17 BCF Plan are:

 A fully integrated Health and Social Care model 
 Intermediate Care - phase 2 
 Protection of Social Services
 Disabled Facilities Grant

The reduced number of schemes shows that Trafford has made significant progress with the 
schemes for 2015/16 with the majority of these now being managed as business as usual. 
These schemes will still be part of the BCF dashboard to provide evidence of improvement. 

5.2 In terms of protection of social care, £5.5m was agreed for 15/16 and agreement needs 
to made in terms of the plan for 16/17.

6. Recommendations

6.1 The Health & Wellbeing Board are asked to note the contents of the Better Care Fund
progress report for 15/16, and to note the schedule for 16/17 BCF planning and assurance.

6.2 To place an item of the next HWB agenda to provide approval for the 16/17 BCF Plan.

Page 9



Appendix 1 – Scheme Highlight Summary Report as at 5th March 2016

1  Integration of Community-based Adult Health & Social Care

Summary Report 5th April  2016

A consultation process will be initiated with CEC staff: aligning the objectives of Phase 2 to 
reorganise the clinical leadership. The alignment of the Band 6/7 CEC and District Nursing roles has 
been scheduled for April 2016 onwards to take account of the delay in recruiting to the Band 8 and 7 
posts in the Neighbourhood hubs. Interviews are now taking place for the 8a/Band 7 roles.    

All Age Integration will replace the 2015/16 project. A joint workshop is planned for March 2016 to 
agree new priorities. Work is also underway to align performance reporting and present on an All Age 
basis. Key performance indicators are being developed for All Age integrated delivery models.

TMBC are progressing a broad partnership approach to address local requirements for adequate 
provision of community estate that facilitates co-location of integrated All Age services. This will be 
closely linked to the CCG’s work on community hubs.

Work is in progress to produce a harmonised Directory of Services (DoS) that reflects integrated All 
Age services covered by the Section 75 Agreement.  

Development of integrated performance monitoring/ reporting has been incorporated within a work-
stream to support renewal of the Section 75 Agreement to be achieved by April 2016. This includes 
the review of the proposed benefits realisation model. 

Work has commenced on the development of a new model of care for the delivery of Intermediate 
Care including its alignment with CEC, ATT+, and NWAS responses.

Phase 2 will align step up /down models for secondary care into Ascot House Intermediate Care. 
Reporting will be via the Intermediate Care group, priority workshop and FQP/Contract board. 

Work is also in progress to develop and implement the new Community Nursing model which will also 
incorporate End of Life Care. The model integrates new approaches to self-care, self-management 
and health improvement and opportunities for collaboration with TCCC and other partners.   

Project Risk/Issues:
 Risk: Failure to fully realise the benefits and financial  efficiencies associated with fully 

integrated community health and social care service provision (Addressed on Risk Register)

Project Status 

2  End of Life & Palliative Care

Summary Report 5th April 2016

Page 10



The Governing Body have approved the continuation of this project supporting the work in Phase 1. 

Phase 1
Using a Task and Finish Group approach; this group will progress the objectives by way of completing 
the agreed Action Plan, The Action Plan identifies opportunities against each of the current 
contractual agreements where direct improvement can be made which will achieve improvement in 
commercial value, improved access, improved utilisation, improved VFM without major contractual 
change at this time 
In conjunction with Phase 1  the project team will continue to consider the Case for Change (Phase 2) 
should this ultimately be necessary to achieve the recognised best practise  and to meet un-met 
service demand by the current models commissioned/ providers
However there needs to be a suitable time to also consider the impact of the changes made in Phase 
1: Therefore the Case for Change will be considered at a more appropriate time in the year

Project Risk/Issues:
• Register being developed, none reported

Project Status 

3  Community Nursing & Ambulatory Care

Summary Report 5th April 2016
The CCG has  issued  Pennine Care with the revised Specifications and are awaiting the feedback 
from the provider..

Pennine will set out a mobilisation plan as part of their response.

It will then work to understand the timescales and financial implication of the full transition to the 
holistic community nursing care model; which will be mapped out for consideration in 17/18 aligning to 
the TCCC and Primary Care Locality Service model requirements. 

Project Risk/Issues:
 Risk: Timeline – further revisions to the service specifications and response period may 

impact on implementation period
 Risk: Financial – Previous response from Provider  was not financially viable as each option 

sought considerable  financial recurrent investment
      Revised specifications minimise the financial exposure /investment expected 

Project Status 

4  Falls

Summary Report 5th April  2016
Information to  be collected from NWAS to understand demand for the service. 
A scoping exercise is currently underway to map all services that support people who fall in the 
community. 

NWAS will continue to operate the Falls referral scheme. 

The project manager will continue to collate information and activity from those community services 
already in place supporting the full cohort of patients. This information will help identify areas of best 
practice to be expanded and shared.

Page 11



Falls will be a high priority cohort classification to include in risk stratification once the TCCC expands 
its work streams and the TCCC will become the single point of referral (dates still to be agreed).

No additional services for Falls will be committed until there has been sufficient time to establish the 
number of services in existence; their performance/effectiveness; value for money; and impact is 
reviewed. This will report back in January 2017 on findings and proposals
This project will now only report by exception in the meantime.
Project Risk/Issues:

 Risk: The current delay to the TCCCs Go Live is having an impact on their capacity to 
commence the Falls Service evaluation period (data collection) and consequently the 
implementation of the project will be delayed. 

o It has been agreed by the Governing Body to extend the review /assessment period 
of this scheme in order to gain a full understanding of community provision and 
impact of deflection and support services. Reporting January 17

This Risk is now Closed – 04/03/16
Project Status 

5  ATT+

Summary Report 5th April 2016
This project is now considered to be Business as Usual and will continue to be monitored to ensure 
maximum utilisation. 

Proactive engagement with Nursing Homes and Residential Homes will continue through regular 
attendance at their monthly forum. 

The contract will be renegotiated with the provider (NWAS and Mastercall) to ensure improved value 
for money.
The Mastercall contract will link to any new contract terms agreed under the Out of Hours contract.
Project Risk/Issues:

 Register being developed, none reported

Project Status 

6  Care Homes - Enhanced Primary Medical Services
(previously named PC Model for Nursing and Residential Homes)

Summary Report 5th April  2016
Phase 1 – Enhanced Service – introduced in January and there is current take up of 13 practices 
across Trafford. An assessment is to be undertaken relating to the areas where there is no current 
service and how Trafford CCG will address these.

Phase 2 – This was to be the dedicated service for a Primary care for all nursing and residential care 
home patients. This is currently being considered as part of the CCG’s priority of new models of care. 
The CCG is working on the model that will be submitted at the end of March.

The CCG are currently developing new models of care for Primary care and this may  include this 
service .  this is currently being considered by the CCG.
If a full service excludes this provision then the programme will be reconsidered in line with the 
original plan.
Project Risk/Issues:

Page 12



 Risk: Resource capacity is currently a risk to the timescales of this project and delivery of the 
business case for the long term solution. This remains a risk and the Primary Care Interface 
team will continue to work with practices on the implementation of the interim scheme and the 
monitoring of this service.

Project Status 

7  Intermediate Care 

Summary Report 5th April  2016
Two Senior Nurse positions commenced in post on 4th January, providing clinical leadership to the 
service model; developing standard operating procedures and processes. Further interviews took 
place for other posts mid-January.  The recruitment drive successfully enabled the appointment of 
three Health Care Support Workers who will commence in post February and March 2016. However, 
further recruitment will be necessary for additional qualified registered nurses to deliver the full nurse 
lead model. 

Outcome of Band 5 recruitment  
2.5 WTE have been recruited 

Status of GP recruitment 
GP service provider has informed of the intention to commence delivery of service on 01/05/16 using 
1 part time GP from original recruitment drive and GP partner from Washway Road in the interim until 
August 2016. Interviews for the remaining GP are scheduled for mid-March 2016 with an expected 
start date of August 2016.

Outcome of proposal of additional 5 assessment  beds = total 23
18 beds incrementally increased to 23 full conversion anticipated by 15/03/16

Proposed model timescales 
Proposed timescales for the full nurse led model still dependant on the outcome of the Band 5 
recruitment if successful the intention will be to move to full nurse led model 01/06/2016 allowing for 3 
month notice period. Timescales for full implementation of Phase 2 Early 2017

Activity
Intermediate Care service at Ascot has significantly reduced its length of stay since the new model 
has been implemented. This in turn has improved patient flow. 
The LOS of more than 28 days
Baseline April - October = 61.1%
November – January = 15.4%

Percentage occupancy levels for intermediate care beds
Baseline April – October = 89.8%
November – February = 77.3%

Updated figures will not be available until mid-March.
Project Risk/Issues:

 Risk: Non-delivery of the nurse led model (Risk Register)
 Risk: Non-delivery of Primary Care enhanced model (Risk Register)
 Risk: Long-term availability of Ascot House (Risk Register)
 Risk: The GP provider has informed the CCG that it has been unable to recruit to the two 

vacancies and is going back out to advertisement January/February.  This will impede the 
ability to deliver the nurse lead model in the way that it was described in the full business 
case.  However, the number of beds in operation will remain at 18. Band 5 recruitment still an 
issue. On-going recruitment is in place.

o The GP provider has informed that  expressions of interest have been received from 
2 of their current GP registrars and interviews will take place within the next couple of 

Page 13



weeks; however if successful the candidates will not be in a position to take up post 
until August 2016. An interim solution is to cover the remaining session at Ascot 
House with one of the GP partners. This will commence in May. The Risk will remain 
until cover is in place

Project Status 

Page 14



Appendix 2: Risk Register for Trafford Better Care Fund – Live Risks, Updated March 2016

Risk 
No. Risk Description Causes Consequences Current Controls

Current 
Risk 
Rating

Risk Owner

 What is the specific risk 
to business objectives?

What needs to happen 
for the risk to occur?

What are the 
consequences of this risk 
occurring?

What controls do you currently have to manage this risk?

     

Likelihood

Im
pact

Likelihood x 
Im

pact

 
1 Operational risks which 

result in milestones not 
being achieved within 
the project plan.

1. Recruitment and 
retention challenges.
2. Sickness absence of 
key staff
3. IT Systems delivery
4. Lengthy assurance 
process delaying the 
start of critical projects

Delayed delivery of the 
project milestones

Identified risk should be dealt with at a project level if not 
escalated to Transformation Group for remedial action. 
Schemes which will impact on reduced A & E activity are 
also reported at Trafford’s System Operational Resilience 
Group.
 Individual project risk registers, and new operational risks 
will be reported to the steering group.

3 2 6 Julie Crossley / 
Joanne Gibson

2 The reduction is 
emergency admissions 
is not achieved. . 

There are too many 
factors affecting 
emergency admissions 
to describe causes.

If the reduction target is 
not reached, BCF 
initiatives dependent on 
the P4P payment cannot 
be supported. The 
financial risk to Trafford is 
£1,319

The Steering group will be responsible for monitoring the 
overall progress of BCF against the trajectories.  Each of the 
work schemes will be providing highlight reports on a 
monthly basis. This risk is linked to risk 5- see commentary.
Dashboard to monitor reductions.

2 4 8 Gina Lawrence / 
Jill Colbert

P
age 15



4 Provider organisations 
not understanding the 
impact of  service 
changes on their own 
organisation 

Poor quality 
communication with 
stakeholders, lack of 
understanding by 
stakeholders of 
consequences of 
change, messages not 
filtering through to senior 
leaders of organisations

Break down in 
relationships with 
providers, third sector 
organisations at risk of not 
changing to meet new 
needs

Provider organisations are involved in the redesign of 
services from an early stage through to the monitoring and 
review of service changes. Delivery of a number of 
dedicated sessions with Providers to ensure full 
engagement.
This includes a dedicated Integrated care redesign workshop 
with all provider Health organisations.
Separate sessions with CMFT, Pennine Care and the 
Resilience group with representatives including all acute 
Trusts, Primary care and NWAS.

2 2 4 Julie Crossley / 
Jill Colbert

6 A delayed reduction in 
A&E activity

The redesign of services 
resulting in increased 
demands being placed 
on community services 
may result in a delayed 
reduction  in  A and E 
activity

That performance target is 
missed.

A performance management framework exists, ensuring the 
BCF Steering Group have rigorous oversight of the 
performance metrics and can regularly review and monitor 
performance. Also monitor through the Trafford SROG 
where all stakeholders are represented. This is also 
monitored at The Pennine Care Contract Board. Regular 
engagement  with Pennine in place. Pennine care to identify 
any risks around capacity issues 

3 2 6 Julie Crossley

7 A successful Integrated 
Care model requires a 
skilled workforce to 
respond to new 
demands and clinical 
requirements

A workforce that has no 
access to training, and 
do not understand the 
overall new model for 
integrated care.
Recruitment issues.

Workforce working in a 
non-integrated way, or not 
fully realising the benefits 
of the integrated care 
model.

For primary care the CCG has a dedicated team to oversee 
the primary care education development programme. This is 
also monitored at the Primary Care Strategy Group. Pennine 
Care are fully engaged with all redesign of services which 
impact on their staffing and workforce establishment. 
Individual scheme risk registers.

2 2 4 Julie Crossley & 
Diane Eaton

9 Lack of commitment 
from the voluntary and 
community sector to 
support the shift to early 
intervention and 
prevention activity.

Lack of knowledge from 
the VCS, poor 
engagement by 
programme, no funding 
available.

VCS unable to deliver EI 
and prevention.

BCF Steering Group to oversee and agree the direction of 
travel. Continue conversations with the voluntary and 
community sector about the strategic direction, utilising the 
Thought Chamber. Ensure appropriate contracts and service 
specifications are in place to facilitate this. Cyril Flint contract 
now in place.

1 2 2 Jill Colbert

P
age 16



11 Local authority cannot 
maintain social care and 
the voluntary and 
community sector to the 
level needed to support 
effective out of hospital 
integrated care. 

Increase in demand, 
financial pressures, 
provider failure

Increased admissions and 
delayed discharges

Funds set aside within the BCF to protect social care and 
integrated community services. Close monitoring and 
reporting of social care budget and pressures by the council 
finance lead, reporting into the BCF Steering Group.
Robust systems and tools in place for contract monitoring, 
provider failure.

2 4 8

Jill Colbert
12 The baseline for the 

older people permanent 
residential admissions 
measure included as 
part of the BCF metrics 
is calculated using the 
old methodology in the 
ASCCAR annual return. 
From 2014/15, this 
information will be 
generated from the new 
SALT return. There is no 
indication as to what the 
overall implications of 
this will be and the 
impact on the figures 
reported.

Change in definition of 
outcome measure.

Potentially a change in 
definition could lead to 
missing target 
performance.

The DH has been made aware of this change; the council’s 
performance lead will keep the BCF Steering Group updated 
with any progress and monitor the impact once the first 
calculation has been done using the new methodology.

2 2 4 Jill Colbert

P
age 17



T
his page is intentionally left blank



TRAFFORD COUNCIL

Report to: Health & Wellbeing Board 
Date: 15th April 2016
Report for: Agreement
Report of: Karen Ahmed, interim Director of All Age Commissioning 

Report Title

Joint Learning Disability Strategy

Purpose

To provide the Health and Wellbeing Board with an opportunity to comment on the 
integrated all age approach described in the All Age Learning Disabilities Strategy.

To agree the Strategy subject to any amendments the Board wishes to make.
 

Recommendations

That the Health and Wellbeing Board approve the  All Age Learning Disability 
Strategy

Contact person for access to background papers and further information:

Name: Karen Ahmed Phone 0161 912 1890

Page 19

Agenda Item 6



All Age Learning Disabilities Strategy

1. Background

1.1  Trafford Council and Trafford CCG identified the need for a learning disability 
strategy in 2015 which would underpin an approach for both organisations to 
improve the lives and outcomes for people with learning disabilities as well as 
manage the spend on people with learning disabilities more effectively.

1.2 An analysis of the adult learning disability population identified that the Council 
spent approximately 46% of the adult social care budget on 550 people, and 
that the spend was not delivering the expected outcomes for either the Council 
or the CCG.

1.3  As a result of this, the LD100 project was developed to reassess 100 adults 
with learning disabilities, identifying what the expenditure was delivering and 
reshaping the package of care. The results of these reassessments identified a 
number of principles for developing an approach to supporting people with 
learning disabilities which would both improve outcomes within the available 
budget.

2. Development of the All Age Joint  Learning Disability Strategy

2.1  Consultation events were held by the Council and the CCG in the early autumn 
of 2015 with the CLDT, providers, families and service users to discuss the 
findings of the LD100 and look at what was working well and what the key 
challenges were. These were then followed by a series of task and finish 
groups to further explore key themes that had emerged as challenges in 
improving outcomes – these focused on positive risk management and 
developing independence.

2.2  The All Age Learning Disability Strategy was then drafted based upon the 
findings of all of the research and the events and presented to the Learning 
Disability Partnership Board and the Learning Disability Transformation Board 
for discussion and approval. An easy read version was also drafted.

2.3  The Learning Disability Partnership Board is a board set up under statutory 
guidance to ensure that people with learning disabilities and their carers are 
effectively in planning and decision making in their local area. It comprises 
service users and self-advocates, family carers, providers, commissioners and 
operational staff and is co-chaired by a self-advocate and a senior officer.  The 
Board has links to the Learning Disability Transformation Board, JCB and the 
HWBB.

2.4  The Learning Disability Transformation Board enables the Council and the 
CCG to provide strategic commissioning oversight of all activity relating to 
learning disabilities such as Transforming Care, Reshaping Care agendas. The 
Board comprises senior offices from both organisations and reports into the 
JCB. 

Page 20



2.5   The strategy was circulated over a period of 3 months for comments and is 
attached.

2.6  An action plan is currently being drafted based on the contribution of all 
agencies to the strategy and will be finalised following the Health and Wellbeing 
Board.

3. The All Age Learning Disability Strategy

3.1 The All Age Learning Disability Strategy is a deliberately succinct document 
which describes our outcome based commissioning intentions to deliver whole 
system change to improve the lives of children, young people and adults with 
learning disabilities with or without autism in Trafford. The consultation and 
research recognises that this cannot be achieved by doing more of the same – 
that we must do things differently, taking a life span approach to ensure timely 
interventions, and we must recognise the expertise of our key partners, 
including families, to deliver significant aspects of the strategy. 

3.2 The Strategy has had an extensive consultation period to test out a wider 
collaborative approach within Trafford based on a collective responsibility 
across the whole community to ensure that children, young people and adults 
with learning disabilities with or without autism live good lives.

3.3 The strategy builds on the Reshaping Care approach which has begun to 
provide a foundation for maximising the use of local resources and natural 
assets in Trafford and this will be further developed, building on individual and 
community assets to maximise independence and community connections.

3.4 The strategy also recognises the national Transforming Care work which has 
set out a strategic framework for specialist interventions for some of the most 
vulnerable people with learning disabilities and autism whose behaviour 
challenges our services, and who, because of our service response, often end 
up stuck in hospitals and secure provision where they are unable to live the 
lives they deserve. Trafford partners are already playing a key role in 
developing an approach across Greater Manchester based upon collaboration, 
learning from each other and developing a shared approach to service 
provision and commissioning where this makes sense.

3.5 Key to the strategy is the articulation of outcomes described on page 2. These 
outcomes have been developed by user led groups and underpin the national 
agendas for both children and adults. When seen side by side, it is clear that 
there are consistent themes across the lifespan and these have been  identified 
and summarised in the outside arch of the diagram in order to broadly inform 
the Trafford approach.

4. Recommendations

4.1 The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to comment and note the contents of 
the report and strategy.

Page 21



4.2 The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to approve the All Age Learning 
Disability Strategy.

Page 22



Learning Disability
All Age Strategy

Date: April 2016

P
age 23



Trafford Learning Disability All Age Strategy

1

Introduction
This strategy signals the beginning of an approach to deliver whole system change to improve the lives of children, young people 
and adults with learning disabilities with or without autism in Trafford.

We now understand better than ever our local population of people with learning disabilities and/or autism – both through analysis 
of the information we hold, and through consultation – seeking the views of service users, families, provider and our own workforce.

All of these activities have identified areas where there are good examples of positive outcomes – but they have also identified 
areas where significant improvement is required to make sure that we continue to provide services to children and adults who need 
them, at a time when our resources are shrinking. 

This cannot be achieved by doing more of the same – we must do things differently, taking a life span approach to ensure timely 
interventions, and we must recognise the expertise of our key partners, including families, to deliver significant aspects of the 
strategy. 

Ensuring that children, young people and adults with learning disabilities with or without autism live good lives is not solely the 
responsibility of the Council or the Clinical Commissioning Group, it is the responsibility of the whole community , including friends, 
neighbours, local shops and businesses as well as the specialist services that we commission.

Locally, Reshaping Care has begun to provide a foundation for maximising the use of local resources and natural assets in Trafford 
and this will be further developed, building on individual and community assets to maximise independence.and community 
connections.

Nationally, Transforming Care has set out a strategic framework for specialist interventions for some of the most vulnerable people 
with learning disabilities and autism whose behaviour challenges our services, and who, because of our service response, often 
end up stuck in hospitals and secure provision where they are unable to live the lives they deserve. We will develop an approach 
across Greater Manchester based upon collaboration, learning from each other and developing a shared approach to service 
provision and commissioning where this makes sense.

P
age 24



Trafford Learning Disability All Age Strategy

2

Our Outcomes

P
age 25



Trafford Learning Disability All Age Strategy

3

What this means for service users and families – focus on strengths and skills.
Our approach to supporting children, young people and adults with learning disabilities and their families will be based upon 
recognition of their strengths and skills, complementing our needs assessments. 

We understand that families have a lot of expertise and knowledge about family members and we will build stronger relationships 
with families from the first point of contact – offering support to strengthen their abilities to care for family members, of all ages, 
where this is required and facilitating involvement in assessment and support planning processes.

Person centred support plans for families and children, young people and adults with learning disabilities with or without autism will 
promote an asset based approach which promotes independence and growth in all areas of life.  Natural supports will be used 
wherever possible, and links will be made to enable people with learning disabilities to contribute to local community initiatives. 
Support will focus on enabling children, young people and adults with learning disabilities to achieve their milestones and goals, 
fully utilising universal services, such as leisure and playing a valued role in society. Short breaks will be offered to ensure that 
families can continue to cope.

There are often concerns from families and young people themselves when young people are preparing for adulthood (transitions). 
We will smooth out the process by aligning the assessments and policies, providing dedicated support for people aged 14 – 25 and 
exploring commissioning opportunities for all age services. 

Where children, young people and adults with learning disabilities cannot have their needs met by families or universal services, or 
when they go into crisis, there will be timely access to support, including specialist services that will offer treatment and clinical 
intervention in the least restrictive setting, close to home. Where children and adults have behaviour that challenges services, a 
positive behavioural support approach and intervention will underpin work with both the child or person with learning disabilities, 
their families and/or support workers. Risk will be managed in a way that promotes choice and control, through a consistent 
approach based upon principles of positive risk taking. This balances the opportunity to try out new activities with an empowering 
way of dealing with managing if things go wrong. This will enable people to feel and be safe and to learn how to stay out of trouble.

Choices and change will be promoted by service providers who will develop pathways, including those outside of their own 
services, which reflect the achievements that individuals have made on their life journeys.

P
age 26



Trafford Learning Disability All Age Strategy

4

What this means for service providers – innovative and outcome focused
We will develop a new way of commissioning services – one which encourages the delivery of outcomes in a collaborative way. 
This will mean a radical appraisal of both our procurement methodology and our commissioning approach, including the 
opportunities that commissioning on a Greater Manchester basis will offer.

We often commission in service silos which prevent the delivery of the outcomes we want to encourage, in particular growth and 
development, and consistency across the lifespan. Through discussion with current and new providers we will develop an approach 
which enables providers to flexibly use their expertise to offer services which wrap round and support young adults, working age 
and older people across their life journey, rather than focusing on one area of life e.g. supported housing. As part of this approach 
we will expect providers to work much more collaboratively to deliver the choices and outcomes which service users and families 
have said they want – using resources flexibly across their organisations.

We recognise that the adult social care market is fragile and that this is largely because the austerity measures have necessitated 
driving down costs, and minimising inflationary uplifts at a time when costs such as wages are increasing. At the same time, some 
providers continue to provide packages of care which only ever increase in cost whilst only providing a basic level of care. This 
must change. 

We will develop contracts with providers that specify the outcomes that they are expected to achieve and the financial rewards 
attached to these. This will focus on support which improves peoples’ lives and reduces costs throughout the time that support is 
provided. This must be delivered by a skilled workforce, proficient in areas such as positive behavioural support, working in a 
person centred way utilising natural supports, universal services and delivering support packages that are tailored to promote 
growth.

Providers have indicated that monitoring is often arduous and meaningless and that self-assessment focused on agreed activity 
and outcomes would be preferable. We will revise our monitoring mechanisms as part of our new commissioning approach to 
ensure that we target input and maximise impact with particular reference to safeguarding, quality and value for money. 

P
age 27



Trafford Learning Disability All Age Strategy

5

What this means for our organisations and workforce – new ways of working
The Council and the Clinical Commissioning Group will continue to form strategic partnerships within Trafford and Greater 
Manchester which will deliver key outcomes for local residents – these partnerships will include organisations such as the Trafford 
Lesiure Trust, DWP and the Chamber of Commerce as well as the police, fire brigade, educational establishments etc. to promote 
the delivery of services which form a comprehensive offer for all residents. 

The Council and the CCG recognise that we need to fundamentally reshape the services we offer and commission to deliver the 
right care at the right time in the right place, ensuring that every contact counts, and offering the right kind of support at the first 
point of contact through the All Age Front Door. This will also mean rethinking what integration across health and social care looks 
like for children, young people and adults with learning disabilities. We know that the people we support have different needs from 
those 20 years ago and yet our structure does not reflect this. The skills that our practitioners have also need to change to reflect 
not just the changing needs of individuals, but also the changing environment in which we work in. We need to ensure that our 
services will deliver our identified outcomes, and this will require a shift of focus on needs rather than diagnosis, including those 
children, young people and adults with mild or moderate learning disabilities.

We will therefore develop an all age approach to supporting children, young people and adults with learning disabilities with or 
without autism so that we can ensure that there is access to the specialist interventions that are required at the earliest 
opportunities and that young people and their families are supported to manage the challenges they face. This will also enable a 
smoother transition to adulthood, based on dedicated support which enables young people and their families to effectively prepare 
for adulthood. 

We will review the skills mix within the teams fully utilising social work’s ability to assess holistically and the specialist clinical skills 
of occupational therapists and nurses to train, develop and support the implementation of clinical plans. All practitioners will be 
skilled in support planning, costing packages and interventions and will be supported to deliver effectively within a timely manner. A 
core training programme will be delivered to all learning disabilities staff to ensure that there is a solid foundation of knowledge 
which enables a consistent approach. There will be new relationships with families and providers which supports the delivery of 
positive outcomes – where needed, there will be consistent time-limited support to deliver agreed outcomes such as a core skill, or 
an intervention to increase community presence. 

P
age 28



Trafford Learning Disability All Age Strategy

6

Our Trafford – information about our population
We have 1132 children with statements and 246 children with Education, Health and Social Care plans at November 2015. We also 
support approximately 550 adults with learning disabilities with or without autism and 280 children with complex and additional 
needs at any one time. 

Most adults live in Trafford itself, with only 12% of people living outside of Trafford. Over 70% of people are living in supported living 
or at home with family.

We have high levels of direct payments with over half of our adults and nearly all of our parents receiving a direct payment to 
manage their support.  Most people spend this on day activities and some people use it for personal support.

The largest group by age is people aged 18 – 25. The highest cost care package also falls within this age range. The highest 
average cost of care package by age is for adults aged 82 to 89, and the lowest is in the 90 to 97 years old range.

The PANSI1 analysis has identified that the population is expected to increase over the next 5 years by 3%. However this is just for 
people with learning disabilities only and does not include adults with autism. The largest increases are likely to be in the 85+ and 
the 55 -64 age ranges for people with severe and moderate learning disabilities. Many of these people will be very frail and a 
significant proportion will need specialist services because of having dementia. PANSI also estimates that we currently have 63 
people with learning disabilities and behaviour that challenges and that this will increase by 1 over the next 5 years. We know that 
this is an underestimation as we already support over 100 people with behaviour that challenges and that we have identified 6 
people with significant behavioural issues aged between 14 and 17. Many of these people are likely to have autism which is why 
there is a discrepancy in figures. Population prevalency rates2 suggest that we have 190 children and young people aged under 18.

In November 2015, we currently had 11 in-patients that are within the scope of the Transforming Care fast track work. 4 people are 
in low secure provision, 2 people are in acute psychiatric provision, 2 are in specialist rehabilitation provision and 3 in an 
assessment and treatment unit.

1www.pansi.org.uk
2 Emerson et al. Estimating the number of children in England with learning disabilities and whose behaviours challenge. Sept 2014

P
age 29



T
his page is intentionally left blank



TRAFFORD COUNCIL

Report to: Health & Wellbeing Board 
Date: 18th March 2015
Report for: Approval
Report of: Trafford Council Public Health Annual Report 2015

Report Title

Trafford Public Health Annual Report 2015

Purpose

It is a mandated requirement for Directors of Public Health to publish an Annual 
Report on the health of the local population. 

Attached is the final version of the Trafford Public Health Annual Report 2015. 

Recommendations

The Health and Wellbeing Board is requested to approve and sign off the report prior 
to official publication online.

Contact person for access to background papers and further information:

Name: Sepeedeh Saleh Phone: 1544

Page 31

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Public Health Annual Report  
2015

www.trafford.gov.uk
Page 33



2

ContentsForeword

Public Health has seen one of the most monumental transitions in 
the last forty years, with the return of responsibility for Public Health 
to Local Authorities from 1st April 2013, and further opportunities 
for Public Health in the Greater Manchester devolution agreement.

Over the last century great Public Health 
advances such as water sanitation, improved 
housing and highways, employment 
opportunities and better healthcare 
have been made, enhancing, protecting 
and nurturing good health amongst 
communities. More recently the recession 
has focussed our attention on addressing 
the underlying social conditions which are 
the root causes of ill health. The current 
challenges and opportunities are to find new, 
cost effective ways of giving children the best 
start in life, keeping people well and ensuring 
people have a healthy old age.

Public Health has been the responsibility 
of Trafford Council for over two years now, 
and Trafford Council has contributed greatly 
to improving the health of its residents 
and reducing health inequalities. The key 
challenge for Trafford communities is to 
work towards improving the length and, 
importantly, quality of life for all residents. 
Being physically located in Trafford Town 
Hall has enabled me to build even closer 
relationships with council and community 
services and I am proud to use this Annual 
Report to showcase some of the great 
programmes and projects happening a 
cross Trafford.

The past few years have been financially 
challenging for Trafford Council and financial 
constraints are likely to remain in place for 
the foreseeable future. There is a great deal of 
resilience in our communities, and a proven 
track record of delivering excellent Public 
Health services using an evidence-based, 
assets-based, “economics of prevention” 
approach. I want to use this Annual Report 
to celebrate the assets that we have in our 
diverse communities and the varied and 
valuable work taking place that is helping 
to make Trafford one of the healthiest and 
happiest places to live in Greater Manchester.

Abdul Razzaq 
Director of Public Health 
Trafford Council

 4 The Public Health Journey in Trafford

 6 Locality Working in Trafford

 8 Greater Manchester Devolution Arrangement

 9 Overview of health in Trafford

 10 Increasing healthy life expectancy

 11 Starting well

 14 Living and staying well

 25 Ageing well

 28 Final words

 29 References

3

P
age 34



4 5

The Public Health Journey in Trafford

1940 1960 1980 1990 2000 2010

Where next for  
Public Health in Trafford?
Exciting opportunities for:

•  Integrating health and social care

•   Co-producing better health 
outcomes for everyone in our 
communities

•   Working together, building on 
community assets

•   Tackling inequalities by tackling  
the wider determinants of health

5 July 1948

Park Hospital (now Trafford General), 
the first NHS hospital, opened by 
Aneurin Bevan

•  Doctors, nurses, dentists, opticians,  
all worked together to deliver integrated  
care to all, free at the point of delivery,  
for the first time in the UK

•  Medical Officers of Health in local 
authorities still led Public Health functions

•  Life expectancy in the UK: 66 years for men;  
71 years for women

•  Infant mortality (deaths of babies under  
one year old) 34 per 1,000 live births

1992

Manchester Metrolink opened

•  The line runs through Trafford from  
north to south, with its southernmost  
station in Altrincham

3 November 2014

Greater Manchester  
devolution agreement

•  Plans include devolving new powers and 
responsibilities to Greater Manchester, and 
Greater Manchester adopting a directly 
elected Mayor for the city region

•  Infant mortality 4.3 per 1000 livebirths 
nationally, 2.3 per 1000 in Trafford

1 April 2013

Responsibility for Public Health 
returns to local authorities

•  As outlined in the the Health and Social 
Care Act 2012, local authorities are now 
responsible for improving the health of 
the local population and for public health 
services including most sexual health 
services and services aimed at reducing 
drug and alcohol misuse.

•  The council remains responsible for 
providing social care services (such as 
residential care) for those in need

1960s onward

Decline and Regeneration  
in Trafford

•  1960s & 70s: Economic recession  
– declining industry in Trafford Park

•  1987: Trafford Park Development 
Corporation formed: responsibility for 
Trafford Park and the surrounding industrial 
area

•  1998: 1,000 companies attracted to the area, 
increased employment levels and business 
opportunities 

•  To this day Trafford Park remains Europe’s 
largest industrial estate

1974

Public Health functions  
moved out of Local Authorities

•  All but environmental health duties  
moved to health authorities

•  Medical Officer  
for Health role  
terminated

1986

The Association of Greater 
Manchester Authorities (AGMA) 
Established

•  AGMA represents the 10 local authorities  
of Greater Manchester

•  It works in partnerships with private, public 
and voluntary organisations inside and 
outside the region

Image: Charles J. B. Aldis. An early MOH in London. Image from: http://blog.wellcomelibrary.org/2014/01/the-work-of-a-19th-century-medical-officer-of-health/

P
age 35



6 7

Examples of Locality Working  
in Trafford
•  Engaging communities in taking positive 

action – Make Sale Smile micro-grants 
helped 34 residents to turn their ‘Be Bold’ 
ideas into reality. Two local residents 
created Sale Arts Trail, bringing 1,500 
people into the town centre, improving 
health and wellbeing and increasing  
spend in local businesses

•  New ways to tackle old issues  
– Community-led alley way  
improvements. Agencies, councillors  
and residents came together  
to work on cutting down  
fly-tipping in Old Trafford

•  Enabling new partnerships  
to form – Red Rose Forest,  
Trafford Housing Trust,  
Trafford Council, local  
businesses, councillors and  
Urmston Community Panel,  
together with residents, are  
improving Urmston Meadows.  
The community involvement  
will ensure that positive changes  
are sustained.

For further information please see

‘Be Bold... Be the Difference’ website
www.traffordpartnership.org/BeBold

‘Community Builders’ website 
www.traffordpartnership.org/
BeBoldCampaign/CommunityBuilders.aspx

An example of our Old Trafford and 
Stretford Environmental micro-grants 
www.thebackgallery.wordpress.com/
about-2

Locality Working in Trafford

Working as part of Trafford Council has 
brought new opportunities for Public 
Health to work in partnership with local 
communities on the wider factors underlying 
health. This will ensure residents are centrally 
placed in improving health and increasing 
healthy life expectancies in the borough.

Locality Working is a new approach to 
partnership working. It brings together 
residents, businesses, community groups, 
councillors and public service providers as 
equals to work on new projects, making use 
of the people, places, assets and community 
spirit that thrives within Trafford.

The Trafford Locality Working programme 
has four elements, all following a local 
‘community development’ approach:

•  Locality Projects – where the needs and 
strengths of our communities meet with 
local goals and residents can become 
involved with solving local issues and 
supporting their communities

•  Locality Partnerships – made up of 
councillors, partners and residents, take 
leadership in Locality Working, engaging 
residents and others involved and 
celebrating success

•  ‘Be Bold’ media campaign – showcases 
how residents can make a difference 
to their neighbours and themselves by 
being more active, volunteering, joining 
local groups or simply by being more 
neighbourly

•  ‘Community Builders’ – training 270 
front-line staff and councillors on how to 
unlock the strengths within communities 
by listening, connecting, signposting and 
supporting residents to take action.

Locality Working will also help to ensure that 
Greater Manchester Devolution is connected 
to, influenced by and directly benefits the 
people of Trafford. 

Residents and communities are our greatest 
untapped asset. Communities that are 
involved in decision-making about their 
area and the services within it, that are well 
networked and where neighbours look out 
for each other, have a huge impact on health 
and wellbeing.

The pioneering ‘localities’ programme is 
creating the conditions for community assets 
to thrive, removing barriers for our services 
to work alongside communities in ways that 
are empowering, engaging and meaningful.

Transparency and resident involvement 
is increasing local accountability and 
democracy, enabling an honest conversation 
with residents and stakeholders. This will also 
help to change the relationship between 
services and residents, changing roles and 
expectations and giving residents a more 
active role in their communities.

P
age 36



8 9

Greater Manchester Devolution Arrangement

Trafford and the nine other local authorities 
which make up Greater Manchester have 
worked closely together for 30 years. 
The Association of Greater Manchester 
Authorities (AGMA) was established in 1986 
and the Greater Manchester Combined 
Authority (GMCA), in 2011. This history of 
strong joint working and the push from 
central government to create a ‘Northern 
Powerhouse’ has set the stage for the 
devolution agreement, ‘Devo Manc’. The 
agreement is an ambitious plan to establish  
a locally elected mayor for Greater 
Manchester who would work with GMCA, 
taking responsibility for key elements of 
public sector spending in the area. The 
elections are due to take place in early 2017 
and the mayor would initially have a budget 
of £1billion. 

The devolution arrangement in Manchester 
would mean that responsibility for regional 
decision-making and financial matters 
relating to housing, planning and transport 
are held within Greater Manchester. The 
administration would also control the 
£6billion health and social care budget for 
the region which has already been brought 
together under GMCA. Devolution promises 
to encourage further integration of public 
services, reduce the inefficient overlap of 
services and support prevention efforts, 
while allowing decisions to be made ‘closer 
to home’  for the benefit of local populations. 
This is a good opportunity to work across 
some traditional service, organisational 
and geographic boundaries to improve the 
health and wellbeing of the population. It 
will address physical and mental health; 
primary and secondary care; health and 
social care; treatment and prevention and 
will also advise on areas such as urban  
design and transport policy.

Many of Trafford’s public health challenges 
described in this report are also shared by 
other Greater Manchester local authorities. 
We have already started to work with other 
areas to provide stronger services, for 
example, working on joint commissioning  
of sexual health services. Devolution 
provides an exciting opportunity to take  
this work to the next level. A population 
health focus could combine the spending 
power of the region and put health at the 
centre of all our public spending. 

Overview of Health in Trafford 

Source: Public Health England, 2015

UNDER 18  
CONCEPTIONS

15.6  
per 1,000 females aged 15-17

BREASTFEEDING  
INITIATED

76.5%

SMOKING PREVALENCE  
IN ADULTS

15.5%

RECORDED PREVALENCE  
OF DIABETES

6%

HOSPITAL ADMISSIONS FOR  
HIP FRACTURES IN PEOPLE  

AGED 65 AND OVER

497  
per 100,000 population

DEATH RATES FROM  
ALCOHOL-RELATED  

CONDITIONS

55.3  
per 100,000 population

LIFE EXPECTANCY:  
MALES

79.9 years

PHYSICALLY  
ACTIVE ADULTS

62.5%

LIFE EXPECTANCY:  
FEMALES

83.5 years

MOTHERS SMOKING  
AT DELIVERY

8.3%

CHILDREN (UNDER 16)  
LIVING IN POVERTY

14.1%

LOW BIRTH WEIGHT  
BABIES AT TERM

3.2%
EXCESS WEIGHT IN  
10-11 YEAR OLDS

32%

P
age 37



11

Increasing Healthy Life Expectancy Starting Well 

Life expectancy describes how many years a 
person can expect to live from birth. The 
average life expectancies for men and women 
living in Trafford are slightly higher for England 
as a whole (79.9 years for men and 83.5 years 
for women). These figures mask variations in life 
expectancy across the borough. In general, 
communities in the north of Trafford have 
lower life expectancies than those in the South.

Healthy life expectancy is the number of years  
a person is likely to live in a healthy state. This  
is a good pointer to the population’s general 
health and gives an idea of the population’s 
need for health and social care services. Healthy 
life expectancies at birth for men and women 
in Trafford are 65.7 years and 63.2 years 
respectively. For women in particular, this 
represents a lower figure than we might expect. 
Addressing this would lead to better health  
for Trafford residents and reduce the need  
for health and care services in the area.

Recently published data on deprivation by 
local authority areas shed more light on 
healthy life expectancy. These data show 
that, although levels of deprivation in 
Trafford are relatively low, (Trafford is in the 
third of local authorities with the lowest 
levels of deprivation in the country) levels of 
health in the borough are considerably worse 
than would be expected. In fact, Trafford is 
amongst the bottom third of local authorities 
in England for health outcomes.

A map showing further data on deprivation 
and health across Trafford is available at 
www.infotrafford.org.uk/deprivation#options.

Data from a new report show that people in 
Trafford with serious mental health 
conditions have a high rate of early death 
and that this is significantly higher than 
elsewhere in the country (available at: thersa.
org/mentalhealth-data).

Focussing on raising healthy life expectancy, 
whilst reducing the identified inequalities, 
are key aims for the Trafford Public Health 
team in 2016.

Helping our children and young people to 
grown into healthy and successful adults 
starts with protecting and supporting their 
health and wellbeing before birth. 

In 2014, 24.2% of Trafford’s resident population 
(56,370 people) were aged 0-18 years, with 
this figure expected to increase over the next 
five years1. Trafford celebrates diversity across 
its communities with over a quarter of school 
aged children (27.2%) coming from black and 
minority ethnic backgrounds.

According to the annual Child Health 
profile produced by Public Health England 
(available at: www.chimat.org.uk/resource/
item.aspx?RID=242359), Trafford children do 
similar or better than the England average 
in 30 of the 32 health measures. The greatest 
challenges in Trafford however, are the 
health and social inequalities, which are 
often masked by Trafford’s good outcomes. 
Approximately 14.1% of children aged 0-16 
in Trafford (an estimated 7,157 children) live 
in poverty2.

We know that the impact of deprivation  
is bigger in some communities, for example 
in areas of Partington, Sale West and Old 
Trafford.  Poverty and deprivation can 
damage the health and wellbeing of  
children and young people. 

Other factors associated with variations in the 
health of children or young people include: 

•  Disability 
–  it is estimated that 1 in 20 children in 

Trafford is living with a disability)3 

•  Involvement in safeguarding arrangements 
or becoming a Looked After Child 
–   across Trafford there are on average 320 

children in care, 263 children with a child 
protection plan and 690 children in need4

•  Witnessing domestic violence and abuse 

•  Living with a parent with mental  
health issues

•   Parental alcohol and substance  
misuse problems

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

Al
tri

nc
ha

m
 W

ar
d

As
ht

on
 up

on
 M

er
se

y

Bo
wd

on
 W

ar
d

Br
oa

dh
ea

th
 W

ar
d

Br
oo

kla
nd

s W
ar

d

Bu
ck

lo
w

-S
t M

ar
tin

s

Cl
iff

or
d W

ar
d

Da
vy

hu
lm

e E
as

t

Da
vy

hu
lm

e W
es

t

Fli
xt

on
 W

ar
d

Go
rse

 H
ill

 W
ar

d

Ha
le 

Ba
rn

es
 W

ar
d

Ha
le 

Ce
nt

ra
l W

ar
d

Lo
ng

fo
rd

 W
ar

d

Pr
io

ry
 W

ar
d

St
 M

ar
y’s

 W
ar

d

Sa
le 

M
oo

r W
ar

d

St
re

tfo
rd

 W
ar

d

Tim
pe

rle
y W

ar
d

Ur
m

sto
n W

ar
d

Vi
lla

ge
 W

ar
d

Tra
ffo

rd

No
rth

 W
es

t

En
gl

an
d

% of all Children in Poverty Across Trafford Localities 
Source: infotrafford, 2015

65.763.2

10

Source: Public Health 

England, 2015

P
age 38



12 13

Starting Well 

•   Trafford has a low teenage pregnancy rate, 
with 66 pregnancies amongst girls aged 
under 18 in 2013.  The national Family 
Nurse Partnership was introduced in 
Trafford in 2014, aiming to improve the 
outcomes for babies of young mothers by 
providing intensive support for the first 
two years. Our local bespoke programmes, 
Young Bumps and Butterflies are achieving 
great results, offering friendly, experienced 
advice and support to our younger parents 
in the borough.

•   Our school nursing service in Trafford has 
recently benefitted from a comprehensive 
review and increased investment. Services 
provided include a broad school-based 
immunisation programme and drop-in 
sessions for young people to raise mental 
or physical health concerns.  
–  The school nursing service is responsible 

for measuring reception and year 
six children as part of the National 
Childhood Measurement Programme 
(NCMP). Of the children measured 
in 2013/14, 78.1% of reception aged 
children and 66.6% of year 6 children 
were of a healthy weight. This is a higher 
proportion than the national figure. 
Lower proportions of Trafford children 
were obese than the national average 
(7.9% of reception aged children and 
17.4% of year 6 children)5

•   Trafford Child and Adolescence Mental 
Health Service (CAMHS) which provides 
specialist mental health services, 
is undergoing a transformational 
review. We are working to deliver the 
recommendations from the national 
programme to ensure that young  
people’s mental health needs continue  
to be met.

•   Trafford 0-11 and 11-18 Early Help Hubs 
aim to improve the health of children and 
young people and reduce inequalities in 
health. The ‘Talkshop’ facility, for 11-18 year 
olds, based in Sale, promotes good sexual 
health and the Sexual Health Outreach 
Team (SHOT) offers a specialist service to 
young people aged between 11-18yrs. 
Services include: pregnancy testing, 
support and referral for termination of 
pregnancies, chlamydia screening, condom 
distribution, advice and information and 
one-to-one support for any safeguarding 
and child sexual exploitation issues.

Ensuring a good start in life
Trafford has excellent schools and the 
Council’s children’s services received a 
good classification from Ofsted in 2015. 
Partnerships in Trafford also support our  
goal to maximise children’s life chances.

Other activities across Trafford include;

•  Trafford’s Smoking Cessation Service 
providing specialist support to pregnant 
smokers. 

•   Dedicated infant feeding support for  
new mothers, to provide help in starting 
and continuing breastfeeding. Trafford  
has recently been awarded the UNICEF 
Baby Friendly award, recognising the  
high quality of this support. 

UNICEF Baby Friendly Initiative
Trafford Infant Feeding Coordinator Jackie 
Hall said: “The Baby Friendly accreditation 
ensures that, however a mother chooses 
to feed her baby, she can be confident 
that our services will support her to form  
a strong bond with her child.”

Alison, 36, says despite breastfeeding  
her oldest three children, she encountered 
difficulties feeding daughter Jasmine,  
who is now 14 months.

She said: “When I first had problems I 
was a bit embarrassed about asking for 
help because I felt I should be able to do 
it but the staff and volunteer peers were 
so approachable and gave me different 
techniques to try.

“Coming to the groups has been  
great, you get the chance to  
talk to people in the same  
situation and there’s a real  
sense of community.”

She added: “When I had my first baby in 
1996 there weren’t places you could go to 
feed and I ended up using disabled toilets. 
Things have come such a long way and 
it’s great to know I can go into a shop or 
a leisure centre and feed Jasmine if she 
needs it without worrying.”

The Baby Friendly Initiative, set up 
by UNICEF and the World Health 
Organisation, is a global programme 
which provides a practical and effective 
way for health services to improve the 
care provided for all mothers and babies.

Parents who would like advice and support 
around feeding their baby should speak to 
their health visitor in the first instance.

P
age 39



14 15

Living and Staying Well

Healthy children and young people grow into healthy adults. 
Working to improve the health and wellbeing of our adult 
population is vital in building strong communities in Trafford and 
sustainable economies, to support the population into older age. 
This in turn contributes to increasing healthy life expectancies  
in the borough.

Physical Activity
Today many people have increasingly 
sedentary lives: driving to save time; 
watching television; working in offices; 
obesity and its associated conditions are on 
the increase and our children are the most 
inactive generation ever.

Currently many people in the UK do not 
manage the recommended 150 minutes  
of moderate physical activity each week.6,7

The health benefits of physical activity are  
well known: the most physically active 
people have around a 30% lower risk of death 
compared to those who are less active8.

Trafford physical activity levels compare 
favourably to other similar areas but there  
is scope for improvement9.

Wider effects of increases in physical  
activity would have positive impacts at all 
levels of the community10,11.

FAMILIES
•  Increased  

household income

•  Positive impacts on 
child development

•  Impaired family 
cohesion

INDIVIDUALS
•  Reduced risk of illness 

and premature death

•  Reduced need for  
medical treatment

•  Improvements in 
psychology and 
wellbeing

SOCIETY
• Increased productivity

•  £6.5 billion economic 
savings (England)

•  £1.06 billion health  
savings (England)

•  Reductions in  
youth crime 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Trafford Stockport Swindon

Local Authority

Warrington York

% of population doing at least three 30 minute sessions per week
Source: Sport England. 2014/15

P
age 40



16

Living and Staying Well

Trafford is focussing on three of the  
“Greater Manchester moving” priorities  
this year:12

These priorities were chosen as the most 
likely to have the biggest impact on Trafford’s 
activity goals through existing collaborations 
and strategies.

Increasing the number  
of people walking or running
Currently, the proportion of people in 
Trafford who walk for at least 10 minutes 
at least 5 times a week is lower than that in 
Greater Manchester or England13.

The following projects aim to increase  
the number of people walking and running 
in Trafford:

1.  Promotion of physical activity in GP 
settings – helping staff to encourage 
people to exercise using local 
opportunities and partners.

2.  Healthy Hips and Hearts programme  
– exercises to reduce frailty and improve 
mobility in older people.

3.  Learning from Liverpool East Activity 
Partnership (LEAP) – analysis of a 
programme encouraging residents to 
take up sport and physical activity which 
could be applied in Trafford.

Increasing the number  
of people cycling
Trafford performs relatively well on the 
number of people who cycle at least 5 times 
a week:13

Local priorities include increasing the 
number of people who cycle recreationally 
or for sport and who use a bicycle for daily 
journeys, including commuting to work or 

Cycling improves health and reduces the 
number of cars on the roads, positively 
impacting on congestion and air quality.

We are working on an ambitious programme 
in partnership with Transport for Greater 
Manchester (TFGM) and British Cycling to 
increase the number of identified recreational 
routes within and beyond Trafford.  This 
includes guided rides along scenic local  
routes pitched at various ability levels. 

Full details are available at www.goskyride.com

Promote Physical Literacy in the 
early years, at school and at home
Greater Manchester Sport is supporting 
parents of young children to engage in 
physical activity through play. 

Trafford’s world famous sporting institutions 
provide inspiration to residents. They make 
an ideal platform on which to build the 
public health strategy for increasing physical 
activity in Trafford. Salford Quays is one of 
the country’s largest open water swimming 
venues. Trafford also has a rich  
history and heritage of parks  
and green space, providing  
a stage for a wide range  
of activities which  
both reflect and  
define the local  
culture. 

To promote physical 
literacy in the early 
years, at school and  
at home

To increase the 
number of people 
cycling

Trafford Gtr Manchester England

41.8% 44.1% 47.2%

Trafford Gtr Manchester England

3.6% 1.8% 2.5%

To increase the 
number of people 
walking and 
running

17

P
age 41



18 19

Living and Staying Well

Smoking

Smoking is the biggest single cause of 
preventable early death in Trafford, and also 
a major cause of inequalities in rates of death 
and ill health across the borough14. 

One in eight deaths from cardiovascular 
disease is smoking-related15.

Adult smoking rates have fallen across 
Trafford, but this masks higher rates  
amongst certain communities, such as  
those with higher levels of deprivation.  
Support for people wanting to quit  
smoking in Trafford is available through –

• Local GP practices and pharmacies.

•  Trafford Specialist Stop Smoking 
Service, which offers face to face 
appointments with trained advisors 
at nine clinics across the borough. 
Referrals can be made from a range of 
professionals including GPs, pharmacists, 
midwives, and learning disability teams. 
Stop smoking services offer tailored 
interventions for people making quit 
attempts, including nicotine replacement 
treatments and behavioural support.

Alcohol
Alcohol is a key cause of preventable 
premature death, chronic illness and hospital 
admissions in Trafford16.  The number of 
hospital admissions caused by alcohol  
in Trafford has risen year-on-year for the  
past decade16. 

Safe drinking levels are: up to 21 units per 
week for men and “up to 14 units per week” 
for women17. Approximately 27% of Trafford 
adults regularly drink more than this every 
week16.

About 6.5% of adults in Trafford regularly 
drink very high risk amounts - that is, over  
50 units per week for a man and over 35  
units per week for a woman16.

Support for people experiencing problems 
with alcohol in Trafford, includes:

•  Trafford Alcohol Navigation Service 
provided by Phoenix Futures. This offers  
a bespoke treatment plan for anyone over 
the age of 11 in Trafford experiencing 
problems with alcohol, enabling individuals 
to make positive changes in their lifestyles. 

•  The Recovery Abstinence Service provides 
on-going support for people who have 
achieved abstinence, and has developed 
the “Future Skills” gardening initiative. 
This partnership agreement with Age UK 
provides a free gardening service to elderly 
residents in the Trafford Area and allows 
service users to get involved and learn  
new skills.

Trends in alcohol-specific hospital admissions for Trafford
Source: PHE, 2015

300

400

500

2008/09

pe
r 1

00
,0

00

2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14

Trafford

Worse

Compared with Benchmark:

England Similar

Estimated annual number of deaths from preventable causes in Trafford
Source: Trafford Public Health, modelled from national data

ALCOHOL
119

PHYSICAL 
INACTIVITY

140

OBESITY
70

SMOKING
343

P
age 42



20 21

Living and Staying Well

Mental Health
Mental health is a key part of overall health 
and wellbeing. Unfortunately, mental health 
problems are quite widespread in the UK 
population, with about one in four British 
adults experiencing at least one mental 
health problem in any one year18. Anxiety 
and depression are the most common 
mental health problems, with around 1 in 
10 people affected at any one time. These 
can be severe and long-lasting and often 
have a big impact a person’s ability to get on 
with life. Other less common mental health 
problems include as bipolar disorder and 
schizophrenia. 

Mental health conditions can be important 
causes of inequalities in health. Poorer 
people, the long-term sick and unemployed 
people are more likely than the general 
population to be affected by common 
mental health problems for over 18 months19.

In Trafford, there is evidence that, despite 
some improvements in the quality of  
mental health care, more still needs to be 
done for this vulnerable population.  
A recent national report found people with 
mental health conditions in Trafford have  
a disproportionately high rate of early death, 
even compared with people with mental 
health conditions in other parts of the 
country. This is despite a finding of relatively 
good access to health checks for people with 
mental health conditions in the area (thersa.
org/mentalhealth-data).

Mental Health remains a priority for the 
Trafford Health and Wellbeing Board20.  
Approaches for Trafford must include work 
on the wider determinants of health for 
people with mental health conditions.This 
includes work with partners such as Trafford 
Housing Trust on local mental health and 
wellbeing programmes. These approaches 
will contribute, not only to reducing health 
inequalities, but also to improving rates of 
healthy life expectancy across the borough.

Substance Misuse
Greater Manchester West offers a bespoke 
treatment plan for anyone over aged 18 and 
over who may need support with prescribed 
medications, enabling individuals 
to make positive changes in their lifestyles. 

Trafford achieves the highest completion 
rate for opiate misuse treatment in the North 
West. We are also working hard to detect the 
rising trend of New Psychoactive Substances 
or legal highs to ensure individuals are 
receiving appropriate treatment.

NHS Health Checks
The NHS Health Check programme aims  
to help prevent heart disease, stroke, diabetes, 
kidney disease and certain types of dementia 
by identifying risks and providing health 
improvement advice21. Everyone aged 
between 40 and 4 years is invited to attend 
an NHS Health Check every five years, with 
the exception of those who have certain long 
term conditions. Health Checks highlight how 
individuals’ personal risks can be reduced 
through lifestyle changes such as quitting 
smoking, losing weight and drinking less 
alcohol, as well as giving people support to 
achieve these changes. 

In Trafford over 5,000 people every year 
attend their NHS Health Check either at their 
GP practice or a local pharmacy22.

P
age 43



22 23

Living and Staying Well

Cancer Screening
Disease prevention and early diagnosis are 
important for improving health outcomes 
and life expectancy in Trafford. All eligible 
people are invited to have screening tests 
for breast cancer, bowel cancer and cervical 
cancer. Cervical Screening is delivered by 
GPs and breast and bowel screening through 
national programmes. For more information 
about cancer screening programmes, please 
see www.nhs.uk/Livewell/preventing-cancer/
Pages/cancer-screening.aspx for more 
information.

The proportion of people in Trafford 
accepting a screening test varies 
considerably by locality and population 
group. Uptake of screening tends to be 
lowest in localities in the North of Trafford, 
which also sees some of the worst health 
inequalities in the borough. Increasing the 
numbers of people in these areas attending 
for screening tests could help to tackle these 
inequalities.

Public Health is working in partnership with 
health services, council partners, community 
and third sector organisations across Trafford 
to encourage and support people to have 
their cancer screening tests. Research is 
being analysed into why people may not 
go for screening tests and local groups 
and charities such as Macmillan, Cancer 
Research UK and Voice of BME-Trafford are 
working together with communities to help 
inform and engage people with screening 
programmes.

In 2014-2015, Trafford celebrated the 
highest cervical screening coverage rate in 
Greater Manchester. Schemes such as the 
‘One Minute’ social media campaign, which 
promoted cervical screening to women 
across the borough, contributed to a range 
of approaches leading to this success. In 
Public Health, we hope to sustain this figure, 
improve uptake rates for breast and bowel 
screening, and reduce inequalities between 
groups in Trafford in 2016. This will cut the 
number of Trafford residents affected by 
cancer in the future.

Work, the Economy and Health – Good Quality Jobs 
The conditions in which we work have a 
huge impact on our health; good quality jobs 
can improve and protect health, whereas 
poor quality work can be damaging to health 
and can also worsen inequalities across the 
population23. The UK economy has continued 
to grow following its peak before the 2008 
financial crisis and we now have lower levels 
of unemployment24. This, however, has come 
hand-in-hand with increases in part time 
employment, more zero hour contracts and 
more in-work poverty25-27.

Low-quality work can harm  
health through:

• Poor working conditions 

•  Psychological or social  
conditions at work

• Poor pay or insufficient hours

•  Temporary or insecure work,  
with the risk of job loss

Employment and Worklessness in Trafford
Trafford is one of the economic powerhouses 
of Manchester but many of its skilled 
residents are employed by businesses  
in other areas of Greater Manchester.

Over 77% of the working age population  
in Trafford are in employment. This is higher 
than the figure for either the North West 
(71%) or the UK (73%)28.

The biggest group of unemployed people 
claiming benefits in Trafford is those claiming 
Employment Support Allowance and 
Incapacity Benefit (5.6%). This is lower than 
both the North West and UK rates.

The proportion of Trafford residents claiming 
the main out-of-work benefits (7.6%) is also 
lower than the equivalent proportion in 
the North West or the UK (11.2% and 9.4% 
respectively).

Inequalities throughout the borough mean 
that the more deprived areas of Trafford also 
have the greatest proportions of residents 
with no qualifications and the highest 
unemployment rates29.

Underemployment (not having access to as 
much work as they would wish) is a problem 
for some in Trafford. Occupations with the 
highest rates of underemployment  
include labourers, cleaners  
and catering staff28.

What can be done:

•  Local partnerships can draw on what is known 
about what constitutes ‘good’ and ‘poor’ 
quality work and can learn from emerging 
quality job promotion strategies, to develop 
better jobs for their local populations.

•  Creating skilled jobs is crucial to creating 
good quality jobs, as skilled work typically 
has more protective elements and less 
health-adverse conditions. 

•  Local authorities should encourage the 
creation of jobs where workers are valued, 
receive a living wage at minimum, have 
opportunities for promotion and are 
protected from adverse conditions (such  
as shift work) where possible.

The Trafford Employment Skills and 
Enterprise Group, a subgroup of the Trafford 
Partnership involving local government, 
employers and the voluntary sector. It works 
to support recruitment to local businesses 
and to maximise employment and training 
opportunities for Trafford residents. 
Programmes include:

•  Nu-Traxx – a programme aimed at 
improving employability skills in young 
people and moving them into employment

•  Working Well Programme – in which 
Employment Support Allowance (ESA) 
claimants are assigned a key worker, 
providing intensive and tailored support  
for a period of two years

•  Stronger Families Programme – 
integrating a number of services to create 
packages of support aimed at reducing 
anti-social behaviour, improving school 
attendance, and helping parents overcome 
barriers to work. This has seen good results 
in Trafford and is to be expanded in 2016  
to support more families facing difficulties.

 

P
age 44



24 25

Living and Staying Well

Health Protection
Health protection is about reducing or 
preventing the harm caused by infectious 
diseases and hazards in the environment:  
for example chemicals and radiation.  
Local authority Public Health departments, 
working with Public Health England and the 
NHS, are responsible for planning to prevent 
such health threats and arranging responses 
to outbreaks or incidents. Immunisations, 
discussed in other parts of the report, are 
also important in the fight against  
infectious disease.

In Trafford one of the main health  
protection priorities is tackling healthcare 
associated infections such as MRSA. All cases 
undergo full investigation and root cause 
analysis in order to learn lessons and prevent 
future cases.

Public Health Protection Functions in Trafford
Prevention 
Potential threats to population health, 
including environmental hazards and 
infectious diseases, can be targeted through 
joint working with the environmental health 
department in the council. Trafford Council 
works closely with Public Health England, 
using data and expert advice to set up local 
prevention strategies, for example for the 
prevention of tuberculosis.

Planning and Preparedness 
The Secretary of State has a legal duty 
to protect the health of the population. 
This involves Public Health England (PHE) 
providing information to local agencies. The 
Director of Public Health (DPH) in Trafford 
provides information and advice and acts 
on behalf of the local authority, making 
sure robust plans are in place to protect 
the health of local residents, for example in 
preparing for a possible influenza outbreak. 
The DPH is also a local leader here, escalating 
any concerns to the correct authorities.

Partnership Working 
Strong working relationships locally 
are important in health protection 
planning. Trafford Council works closely 
with NHS England, NHS Trafford Clinical 
Commissioning Group and provider 
organisations in health protection work. 
The DPH in Trafford Council chairs the multi-
agency health protection forum, which 
provides assurance to the Trafford Health 
and Wellbeing Board that robust plans and 
arrangements are in place to protect the 
population of Trafford. The DPH also co-chairs 
the Local Resilience Partnership, participating 
and raising awareness of emergency plans  
in place for the local community.

Ageing Well

Trafford currently has a slightly higher 
percentage of older people than the profile 
of Greater Manchester as a whole and the 
life expectancy for men and women in the 
borough is better than the national average, 
at 79.5 years for men and 83.5 years for 
women1. 

The Future…
By 2020, there will be 3,000 more people 
aged over 65 years living in Trafford: of these, 
1,000 will be aged over 90 years.

Older people provide the backbone of much 
family support and volunteer based services, 
but an ageing population can present a 
significant challenge to health and social  
care services and infrastructure.

Age 90+
1,000

Age 65+
3,000 more  

P
age 45



26

Ageing Well

Future Needs
Future needs and demands for health and 
social care depend on more than just life 
expectancy.  To estimate population needs, 
we also need to know the numbers of people 
supporting friends and family in older age 
and the levels of poor health and disability 
among older people.

Comparisons of total life expectancy with 
‘disability-free life expectancy’ (the number 
of years after age 65 that people can expect 
to live without significant disability) give an 
indication of expected demand for health 
and care services.

We can see from the figures that people in 
Trafford are living with disability for longer 
than expected from the national figures. 

Some of the causes of this poor health in 
older age are diabetes, cardiovascular disease 
and falls. Trafford is doing less well than the 
England average in some of these areas, 
including:

• Reducing death from preventable causes 

• Uptake of NHS Health Checks

• Cancer screening

• Diabetic retinopathy screening

•  Injuries due to falls in people aged over 65

• Fuel poverty

So improving our performance in these 
areas to at least the England average would 
significantly improve the health of our 
population and greatly reduce the need  
for services30.

Inequalities across Trafford mean that health 
in the north of the borough is, on average, 
significantly worse than in the south29.

Lifestyle Factors
Improvements in health can partly be 
achieved by reducing lifestyle-related  
ill health, caused, for example, by  
smoking, alcohol use, lack of physical  
activity and obesity.

We have established programmes  
in all of these areas, but their  
reach and impact is variable.  
Improvements here would mean  
that everyone across Trafford  
could access the support  
they need to make lifestyle  
changes, ensuring our adult  
population ages well.

Environmental Factors
Changes to the environment in which  
people live can reduce the risks they face  
or can make healthier choices easier.

For example, changing street and pavement 
design and introducing dementia friendly 
standards for shops and cafes make it  
easier for people with visual or memory 
impairment to get out and about and retain 
their independence. In Trafford, dementia 
friendly initiatives have been introduced  
in a few of our town  
centres in the past year. 
We also need to  
address the number  
of households  
affected by fuel  
poverty.

Number of people in the UK at age 65 expected to live over half their 
remaining lives free from disability
Source: Office of National Statistics. Disability-free life expectancy, 2015

Number of people in Trafford at age 65 expected to live over half their 
remaining lives free from disability
Source: Office of National Statistics. Disability-free life expectancy, 2015

Men

Men

Women

Women

58.5%

54.5%

53.2%

51.3%

27

P
age 46



28 29

Final Words

During the last two years, Public Health has established a positive 
start in the Local Authority, developing successful relationships 
with a range of partners within Trafford and the surrounding areas. 
Major challenges remain, crucially, the need to tackle persisting 
inequalities in health, whilst improving overall healthy life 
expectancy through a life course approach. A strong focus on  
ill health prevention will support the transformative challenges 
facing the Trafford in the coming years.

References

1.  Office for National Statistics. Population mid-year 
estimates 2013. London. 2015.

2.  Public Health England. Public Health Profiles. Child Health 
Profile 2015; Trafford. London. 2015.

3.  Trafford Council. Joint Strategic Needs Assessment: 2012. 
Available at: www.infotrafford.org.uk/jsna.

4. Trafford Council, DCS Safeguarding Governance Group. 
Monthly Safeguarding Activity Report: July 2015.

5.  Health and Social Care Information Centre, (2015) 
National Child Measurement Programme 2013-2014.

6. Department of Health. Start Active, Stay Active: A 
report on physical activity for health from the four home 
countries’ Chief Medical Officers. London. 2011.

7. Chief Medical Office. Department of Health. At least five 
a week: Evidence on the impact of physical activity and its 
relationship to health. London. 2004.

8. Morris JN, Heady JA, Raffle PA, Roberts CG, Parks JW. 
Coronary heart disease and physical activity of work. 
Lancet. 1953: 265;1053-1057.

9. Sport England. Active People Survey 9. Available at: 
http://www.sportengland.org/research/about-our-
research/what-is-the-active-people-survey/.

10. Allender S, Foster C, Scarborough P and Rayner M. The 
burden of physical activity-related ill health in the UK. 
Journal of Epidemiology and Community Health. 2007: 61; 
344-348.

11.  Ossa D & Hutton J. The economic burden of physical 
activity in England. London. 2002.

12.  Greater Sport: Greater Manchester Sports Partnership. 
Greater Manchester Moving. Available at:  http://www.
greatersport.co.uk/get-active/greater-manchester-
moving.

13. Department of Transport. Walking and cycling statistics: 
Proportion of residents who walk or cycle for recreational 
purposes (CW040). London. 2015.

14.  Public Health England. Tobacco profile for Trafford. 2015. 
Available at: http://www.tobaccoprofiles.info/ 

15. Action on Smoking and Health (ASH). Smoking statistics. 
2014. Available at: http://ash.org.uk/files/documents/
ASH_107.pdf .

16. Public Health England. Trafford alcohol profile. 2015.  
Available at: http://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/local-
alcohol-profiles

17.  NHS Choices. Alcohol Units. 2015. Available at: http://
www.nhs.uk/Livewell/alcohol/Pages/alcohol-units.aspx

18.  The Office for National Statistics. Psychiatric Morbidity 
report. London. 2001.

19. National Statistics. Better Or Worse: A Longitudinal Study 
Of The Mental Health Of Adults In Great Britain. London. 
2003

20. Trafford Council. Trafford Joint Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy 2013-2016. Available at: http://www.
infotrafford.org.uk/hwbstrategy.

21.  Public Health England. NHS Health Checks website. 
Available at: http://www.healthcheck.nhs.uk/

22. Public Health England. NHS Health Check Data – 
October 2015. Available at: http://www.healthcheck.
nhs.uk/interactive_map/north_of_england/north_
west/?la=Trafford&laid=90

23.  Bell, R., et al., Work, stress and health: The Whitehall II 
study. J. Ferrie, Editor. 2004. International Centre for 
Health and Society/Department of Epidemiology: 
London.

24. PwC. UK Economic prospects. 2014. Available at: http://
www.pwc.co.uk/the-economy/publications/uk-
economic-outlook/ukeo-nov2014-prospects.jhtml

25. Office for National Statistics, People and proportion in 
employment on a zero-hour contract: 2000-2012, October 
to December, each year (ONS Labour Force Survey). 
2014.

26. Unite. Government must act to halt rise in zero hours. 
Available at: http://www.unitetheunion.org/news/
governmentmustacttohaltriseinzerohours/

27.  MacInnes, M.D. Monitoring Social Exclusion and Poverty 
2014. Joseph Rowntree Foundation, 2014.

28.  Nomis. Labour Market Profile – Trafford. 2016. Available 
at: www.nomisweb.co.uk

29.   Department for Communities and Local Government. 
Indices of Multiple Deprivation (IMD) 2015. Available at:  
http://www.infotrafford.org.uk/deprivation#info

30.  Kippin, H. Randle, A. Managing Demand: Building Future 
Public Services. 2014. Available at: www.thersa.org/
discover/publications-and-articles/reports/managing-
demand-building-future-public-services

Abdul Razzaq 
Director of Public Health 
Trafford Council

P
age 47



30 31

For further information on the work programmes  
included in this report, please visit www.trafforddirectory.co.uk

Published by Trafford Council December 2015

0161 912 2000

Acknowledgements

Prepared by Abdul Razzaq

Edited by Sepeedeh Saleh

With contributions from Paula Whittaker,  
Helen Gollins, Eleanor Roaf, Tim Gillibrand,  
Phil Clelland, Christine Camacho, Adrian Bates,  
Nick Metcalfe, Jill Colbert, Jackie Hall, Nicky Shaw,  
Paul Burton, Kylie Thornton, Eve Donelin,  
Jenny Shaw, Sarah Gunshon, Jamie Whyte  
and Kerry Briggs

P
age 48



www.trafford.gov.uk
Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



Reshaping Trafford Council 

Reducing Physical Inactivity – a vision for Trafford

P
age 51

A
genda Item

 8



Subtitle

• Physical inactivity is the fourth largest preventable  

risk factor for death (behind high blood pressure, 

smoking and diabetes)

• Physical activity in older people is the most 

powerful intervention in preventing frailty and 

promoting successful ageing.

• Compared to an active person, someone who is 

inactive will spend 38% more days in hospital, have 

5.5% more GP visits and 12% more nurse visits per 

year.

• The saving to services of a person becoming active 

is estimated at £1,760- £6,900 per person per year 

2

Why does physical activity matter?

P
age 52



Subtitle 3

UK Chief Medical Officers’ Guidelines 2011 Start Active, Stay Active

P
age 53



Subtitle 4

P
age 54



Subtitle

ACTIVE LIVING
ACTIVE 

OCCUPATION

ACTIVE EARLY 

YEARS
ACTIVE TRAVEL

ACTIVE 

RECREATION
SPORT

Household Tasks 

& Hobbies

(Gardening, DIY)

Job-related 

Activity (Lifting, 

digging)

Children’s Free 

Play (Hopscotch, 

tag)

Sustainable 

Transport 

(Walking, running, 

cycling)

Leisure Activity 

(Fitness, exercise, 

dance, walking, 

cycling)

Recreational Sport 

(Pay and play, 

informal groups)

Opportunist 

Activity 

(Run for the bus, 

carry shopping, 

take stairs)

Structured Early 

Years Activity

(Let’s Play, activity 

sessions)

Competitive Sport

(Sports clubs, 

events, 

performance 

pathways)

5

What counts as physical activity?

P
age 55



Subtitle

• 28.3% of adults in Trafford take less than 
30 minutes physical activity each week

• Only 62.5% of adults aged 40-79 take 
enough physical activity to protect their 
health

• Increasing this to 75% (by getting 13,251 
people more active) would save 114 lives 
per year and £1.5m in health costs

• 46% of adults who are inactive report 
that they want to take part in sport

6

What is the position in Trafford?

P
age 56



Subtitle

• To target the 28% of people who are physically 

inactive (taking less than 30 minutes exercise 

per week)

• To create a vision that keeps this message 

simple; unites partner effort; and influences 

delivery

• To work in partnership with all stakeholders to 

identify physically inactive individuals 

• To consider the range of activities available, 

and their appeal to different demographic 

groups

• To identify and address barriers to physical 

activity

7

Next Steps for Trafford

P
age 57



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1

TRAFFORD PARTNERSHIP

Report to: Health and Well Being Board

Date: 15th April 2016

Report of: Kerry Purnell, Head of Communities & Partnerships, Trafford 
Council

Report Title

Domestic Abuse Update

Purpose and Summary

To provide an update on the Domestic Abuse work streams and our new 
governance arrangements for Domestic Abuse

Recommendation(s)

Report to be noted

Contact person for further information:

Name: Kerry Purnell          Extension: 0161 912 2115
Apendices

Safer Trafford Partnership structures 2016

1 Governance

1.1    Until early 2015 there were numerous sub-groups which sat beneath the Domestic Abuse 
Delivery Board. However partners reported difficulty in attending and servicing the number 
of meetings and some fell by the wayside.  Over the course of 2015 a root and branch 
review of the whole Trafford Partnership was undertaken in order to reduce duplication, 
maximise use of staff time and ensure work of the partnership delivers outcome focussed 
strategies and action plans which  add value beyond what agencies would deliver as 
‘business as usual’.

1.2 As a consequence of the review and of a refresh of the Trafford Crime Strategy, the Safer 
Trafford structures were also streamlined from 3 sub-groups to 2 in late 2015. The 
Protecting Vulnerable People (PVP) sub-group remains, largely unchanged, and Domestic 
Abuse forms part of the PVP action plan. However it quickly became apparent how 
complex and far reaching the DA delivery streams are and so the Chair of the PVP group 
asked that a Strategic DA Delivery Forum be reconvened to ensure oversight of all work 
streams and appropriate reporting mechanisms into both STP and the Children’s and 
Adults Safeguarding Board. The Strategic Forum met for the first time in early March. 

Page 59

Agenda Item 9



2

1.3 Trafford is connected into the GM DA structures and is represented on the GM DA Delivery 
Board, GM DA Co-ordinators Group, GM Service Led Improvement forum and the GM 
Strive Project Board.

1.4 Work is underway to pull together a single DA Delivery Action Plan to include the Children’s 
Safeguarding priority actions as well as those in the PVP action plan with new work 
outlined in section 3 below to be added as it comes on stream. The Strategic Forum will 
monitor progress against the plan.

2 Work streams 

2.1    STRIVE:- Early Intervention to reduce risk and demand on services

S - Safeguard 
T - Threat Assessment 
R - Re-Visit 
I –  Intervention 
V – Volunteers 
E – Engagement 

Alongside the other 10 GM boroughs, using Home Office Innovation Funds and sponsored 
by the Police Crime Commissioner’s Office (OPCC), we have developed a new service for 
victims of domestic abuse who report to the police for the first time. Where there is no crime 
recorded and no criminal justice outcome, and where the risk is assessed as standard or 
low, PCSOs and trained volunteers are being used to conduct follow up visits and offer 
bespoke support to families who would not otherwise be getting the help they need and are 
therefore likely to present again to the police or other services in the future. This service 
reform project runs until March 2017 and is being externally evaluated by the University of 
Lancaster.

GM Evidence base: 
 In 2013-14, of the 66,174 DV related calls to GMP, 74% assessed as  standard risk
 In these, repeat vulnerability was 68-82%
 20% had children present
 Current model - standard letter sent out, no intervention
 HMIC inspection of GMP highlighted issues relating to standard risk
 From Jan 2014, pilots started in some GMP divisions which provided the basis on 

which bid to Home Office Funds was made.

Trafford has received considerable funding to get STRIVE up and running, £138k for 2015-
16 and £20k for 2016-17. There is a huge amount of national interest in its progress given 
the outcomes of the HMIC thematic inspection of police forces around domestic abuse.

Key elements to the Trafford Strive Model:
• Multi-agency steering group of Council, GMP, Health and commissioned providers
• GMP began follow up victim visits using PCSOs in July 2015 and this continues.
• Volunteer Infrastructure: Pulse have an overall contract with the Council and for 

Strive have sub-contracted to Relate to recruit, train and manage volunteers. A full 
time Volunteer Co-ordinator is in place and since early December 2015 she has 
bene conducting joint visits with PCSOs. 24 volunteers are now recruited and 
should start visits in April 2016.

• Referral Gateway: established involving GMP, CRC, MARAT and Relate to record 
cases which fit the STRIVE cohort, share intelligence, risk assess and allocate. This 

Page 60



3

gateway will ultimately fall into the All Age Front Door/ Public Service Hub model 
once this is implemented in Trafford. 

• Project Co-ordination, risk assessment and development: CRC Partnership 
Intervention Co-ordinators have been commissioned to provide this service.

• Outcomes star licences purchased for consistent outcomes monitoring.
• Family Group Conferencing: Barnardo’s have been commissioned to provide for up 

to 40 families to undertake FGC. This is unique across the GM STRIVE programme.
• DA Awareness training for frontline staff and volunteers: Has been commissioned 

from TDAS. 8 courses for 15 staff and volunteers have been arranged beginning 
March 2016 and running for 12 months. 

• Network of Victims’ Champions: Commissioned from Pulse as part of the Volunteer 
infrastructure to connect volunteers with commissioned providers to develop 
consistency of practice, shared learning and provide sustainability to the programme 
beyond March 2017.

2.2  Commissioned services in support of victims
The Safer Trafford Partnership and Public Health jointly commission a number of support 
services to higher risk and repeat victims of Domestic Abuse including one to one support 
and refuge services. The commissioning outcomes and framework was refreshed in 2014. 
The current services commissioned until 31st March 2018 are:-

Provision Service 
Commissioned

Brief Description of Service

IDVA x 3 fte
(Victim Support)

The IDVA is a trained specialist whose goal is the safety 
of domestic abuse victims over 16 years referred to 
MARAC. The IDVA's job is to be a bridge between 
victims and the MARAC meeting and provide on-going 
support. One of the IDVAs primarily focuses on support 
to the BME community. 

IRIS x1fte
(Victim Support)

IRIS is a GP practice-based domestic violence training, 
support and referral programme for primary care staff. It 
is a targeted intervention for patients aged 16 and above 
experiencing current or former DA from a partner, ex-
partner or adult family member. IRIS provides care 
pathways for all patients living with abuse as well as 
information and signposting for male victims and for 
perpetrators.

Community 
Based 
Services

Information and 
Advice Line/Brief 
Intervention
(Victim Support)

The Information and Advice Line supports people who 
have a significant local connection with Trafford who are 
experiencing or have experienced domestic abuse.  

Support Worker. 
0.5 fte
(Victim Support)

The Domestic Abuse Support Worker provides advocacy 
and support to male and female victims of domestic 
violence. This involves offering follow up support in 
reported cases of DA, discussing the range of suitable 
options and arranging practical measures to increase 
personal safety, undertaking risk assessments, 
encouraging reporting incidents to the police and 
ensuring early signposting to other agencies, e.g. child 
safeguarding referrals to social services, potential 
homeless referrals to refuge and housing providers. 

Children/Families 
Worker  0.5fte
(Victim Support)

Works with children and young people for whom there is 
DA in the family setting.

Page 61



4

Refuge and 
Floating 
Support

Refuge and 
Floating Support
(TDAS)

Provides support to users of the Refuge and a Floating 
Support units.

2.3 Stronger Families
We have also received an additional £40k from the PCC’s Office to enhance existing 
commissioned services. We have decided to use it innovatively in support of Public Service 
Reform and Complex Dependency and have commissioned Victim Support to employ a 
further IDVA who will be seconded full time to the Stronger Families programme. This goes 
live in April 2016 and will be piloted for 1 year.

2.4 MARAC
The MARAC panel continues to provide multi-agency assessment and support to high risk 
victims. The MARAC is a monthly meeting chaired by the police. It is intended to share 
information about very high risk clients in order to prevent serious harm, develop a safety 
plan, put all possible support in place and lower the risk as soon as possible. The meeting 
is attended by any organisations which may be involved in supporting victims, or which are 
connected with the perpetrator. MARAC data and any emerging strategic issues will be 
monitored by the DA Strategic forum. 

2.5 Behaviour Change programmes
Safer Trafford has identified a gap in provision for those who cause harm through DA, who 
are not in the justice system, but who are motivated to seek help. Public Health has 
undertaken a comprehensive assessment of local need and the cost of DA to the local 
economy. GM also recognise the gap and as part of the bid to the Home Office Innovation 
fund the PCC’s Office has secured resources to pilot and support the roll out of 
programmes across the city region. 3 providers with 3 programmes have been procured 
and are currently being piloted in 5 boroughs. Funding was due in 2016-17 to support each 
borough to roll out a programme and the DA Strategic Forum had intended to develop a 
specification bespoke to Trafford. However  the PCC’s  Office has identified an underspend 
in other funding which is being diverted to early intervention Behaviour Change 
programmes and so we recently had an offer of an immediate £50k if we selected one of 
the 3 GM providers and commissioned them before 31/3/16 for delivery in the next financial 
year.

We held conversations with the providers during early March and have selected Inner 
Strengths. Inner Strengths were commissioned by GM to develop a new screening, risk 
and motivation assessment tool which will be rolled out GM wide and have developed a 
new flexible ‘IS Lite’ 12 session, strengths-based group work programme. Developed jointly 
by an academic and a clinician it is based on analysis of what works and what doesn’t and 
is appropriate for both genders and for young people and trials so far I indicate low attrition 
rates and positive person and family centred outcomes across a range of behaviours. They 
also offer a train the trainer package which would provide a more sustainable and cost 
effective model for the future.

We will be contracting with Inner Strengths for an 18 month programme with a 3 month 
lead-in from April to July 2016. We envisage referral routes being through the following 
cohorts:

 STRIVE
 MARAT
 Stroger Families
 IDVAs
 Primary Care
 Custody disposals where there has been an arrest but No Further Action., Simple 

Caution of Restorative Justice

Page 62



5

We intend to ensure that Inner Strengths is embedded in the wider DA programme and that 
the providers are well connected with our other commissioned services to ensure that we 
take a whole family approach wherever possible
Our programme will form part of the GM independent evaluation which is being provided by 
the University of Cumbria.

3    Future Plans 
 To ensure DA delivery becomes embedded within any new operating models for 

Public Service Reform in Trafford e.g. Key worker approach and the All Age Front 
Door an Public Service Hub

 To ensure there is alignment and connectivity between all commissioned providers to 
ensure all referral pathways are maximised and services are person/family centred to 
produce the best outcomes and reduce risk.

 To scope the Op Encompass model currently operating in Bolton and Rochdale 
whereby information is shared routinely by GMP with schools following police 
attendance at a domestic incident where a school aged child was present.

 To map and scope our current curriculum input in schools around healthy 
relationships and to assess if more services or training is needed for schools to 
support those children affected by domestic abuse

 To commission more TDAS training sessions for frontline staff and volunteers
 To commit further OPCC funding for core service provision (2016-17) to maintain our 

commissioned services at current levels

4 Recommendations

     Report to be noted

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank



1

TRAFFORD COUNCIL

Report to: Health & Wellbeing Board 
Date: 15th April 2016
Report for: Information
Report of: Kerry Purnell, Head of Partnerships and Communities, 

Trafford Council and Superintendent Jim Liggett, GMP

Report Title

Safer Trafford Partnership update

Purpose

To provide an update to the Health & Wellbeing Board on the priorities, activities and 
progress of the Safer Trafford Partnership
 

Recommendations

Performance and update to be noted.

Appendices

A Crime Strategy
B        2015-16 Performance Dashboard
C STP structures 2016

Contact person for access to background papers and further information:

Name: Kerry Purnell Phone: 0161 912 2115

Page 65

Agenda Item 10a



2

1. Governance

The Safer Trafford Partnership Board (STP) is responsible for delivering the 
Trafford Crime strategy which was refreshed during 2015. In light of the 
refreshed strategy the Partnership amended its structures and now has 2 main 
sub-groups (Protecting Vulnerable People and Managing Crime and Community 
Confidence) working on key priorities and also employs task and finish groups to 
deliver specific service reform projects as required. The crime strategy and STP 
structures are attached to this report. 

The Integrated Safer Communities team works out of Stretford Police Station 
and is currently being expanded to comprise GMP, Council ASB, Community 
Safety and Emergency Planning Officers, Housing, GMW Mental Health and 
Substance Misuse practitioners, Integrated Offender Management and Serious 
and Organised crime teams. 

2. Protecting Vulnerable People example priority areas

2.1 Domestic Abuse: a full update is provided to the Health and Well Being Board 
in a separate report.

2.2 PREVENT: The Counter Terrorism and Security Act introduced in July 2015 
conferred a new Prevent duty on specified authorities which includes 
responsibilities for preventing violent extremism and radicalisation and 
safeguarding through the Channel referral, assessment and holistic intervention 
processes aimed at those children and adults identified as being vulnerable and 
at risk of radicalisation. 

      The purpose of the duty is to ensure a broadly consistent and common approach 
across different sectors and areas of the UK at a time when the terrorist threat 
makes Prevent even more important.  It clarifies the role each sector has:

In Trafford we have established a Strategic Prevent Forum which has refreshed 
our Channel processes and is developing a Prevent Action Plan for the borough 
to include how we raise awareness amongst our communities and train our 
workforce through a comprehensive online and face to face training package. 
Accountability for the Prevent programme sits jointly with the Safer Trafford 
Board and the two Safeguarding Boards.

2.3 Hate Crime: In July 2015 we launched the ‘We Stand Together’ campaign for 
Trafford, based on a national campaign to unite communities, celebrate our 
differences and reduce hate crime. We bought together over 100 stakeholders, 
including public services, voluntary and community organisations and interested 
residents at a launch at Hotel Football. While Trafford is recognised as a safe, 

Page 66



3

tolerant and diverse borough, with strong communities and local pride, everyone 
agreed it was important to join the We Stand Together campaign, celebrate our 
diverse, cohesive communities and encourage and demonstrate a sense of 
unity. 

Those attending looked at the current causes of hate crime and intolerance in 
their area and were asked what they knew about the steps being taken to deal 
with these. They also had the chance to put forward their ideas and make 
pledges on how issues could be tackled locally. These pledges have been used 
to inform a refresh of the Trafford Hate Crime Action Plan.

2.4 Child Sexual Exploitation: Practice is fully embedded within Greater 
Manchester’s Phoenix Project. All cases where there are CSE concerns are 
referred through MARAT and assessed by a social worker and a police officer 
experienced in child protection and CSE.  All cases assessed as medium or high 
risk are open or referred to children’s social care. For the small number of low 
risk cases not open to social care an early help package is put in place at the 
Sexual Exploitation and Missing (SEAM) panel.

In 2014-15 Safer Trafford commissioned CCF (Community Change Foundation) 
to deliver a set number of Intensive Resilience Model Mentoring hours with at 
risk young people referred by the SEAM panel. A review of provision for CSE 
across the risk spectrum identified the need to broaden the offer to young people 
at medium as well as high risk of sexual exploitation by providing counselling 
alongside mentoring services. The Safer Partnership has recently commissioned 
Pennine Care and 42nd Street to deliver the new services.

2.5Community Risk Intervention: GMFRS are rolling out their Safe and Well 
programme which includes preventative calls from 0700 to 1900 with a focus on 
fire, falls, crime and general detrition in health, provides risk reduction equipment 
at point of contact and referral to specialists where appropriate. In addition the 
programme provides response to falls in the home on behalf of NWAS (manages 
risk with a view to the casualty remaining at home wherever possible), response 
to ‘Cause for Concern’ incidents relating to mental health on behalf of GMP and 
response to cardiac arrests within a 3-mile radius of their location.

2.6Mental Health: Safer Trafford was a finalist in 2015 for a national APSE 
Innovation and Demand Management award for its introduction of a dedicated 
Specialist Mental Health Practitioner to co-locate within the Safer Communities 
Team. The role of the Practitioner is to triage emerging risk cases; and to engage 
with individuals who are presenting demands on services, supporting the 
development of a multi-agency intervention plan. Although the pilot was originally 
devised as a key means of reducing demand on Police resources, it has 

Page 67



4

demonstrated a much wider potential to reduce demand on other emergency 
services, and independent evaluation has demonstrated it has the potential to 
achieve demand reductions worth in excess of £150k per annum. The pilot has 
now been mainstream funded by the CCG and Trafford have been asked to 
develop a proposal for how it can be rolled out across GM. 

2.7Repeat Demand and Public Service Reform: Analysis by GMP in early 2015 
identified a cohort of repeat victims of crime (more than 3 incidents in a 12 month 
period) which placed a high demand on police resources. Safer Trafford 
commissioned a new project in conjunction with the CRC to work with the top 
repeat victims of crime across the borough to reduce their vulnerability and the 
number of incidents of repeat victimisation. Although engagement has not been 
as high as anticipated those victims engaged have seen a massive reduction in 
repeat incidents. Focus is now shifting from repeat victims to repeat demand 
households and locations and a new project specification is under development.

3    Managing Crime and Community Confidence example priority areas

3.1 Community asset based approaches to crime prevention and community 
safety, confidence and satisfaction: Trafford’s locality working model is a way 
to work collaboratively and innovatively to make best use of the assets we have 
in our local area. This means bringing together everyone, from individual 
residents, businesses, community and faith groups, councillors, community 
leaders and public sector bodies, to work in partnership to share resources and 
enable new ideas to develop and deliver a clear outcome, making full use of the 
physical and human assets, financial resources and community spirit that thrives 
within our localities. It applies equally to crime prevention and community safety 
issues which were the subject of much discussion at our 4 Locality Working 
Stakeholder launch events held in June 2015. 

      Safer Locality Working projects include resident Home Watch Co-ordinators 
leading a Junior Neighbourhood Watch scheme with a primary school in Sale, a 
project which has received positive attention from the Police and Crime 
Commissioner, and residents in the South locality expanding a ‘Know Your 
Street’ capable guardianship project using social media.

      We have just run our first Safer Grants programme under our Be Bold campaign 
and 74 residents and community groups submitted bids for up to £500 with ideas 
for small projects that they will deliver, which will improve perceptions of safety, 
community cohesion and neighbourliness. 

3.2 Anti-Social Behaviour: Work is underway to introduce consistent practice 
across the borough with police and housing colleagues, especially around victim 
risk assessment. Following a rise in youth disorder in the summer Trafford was 
one of the first areas nationally to use new ASB legislation to take out 
emergency ex-parte injunctions on 8 young people. Partnerships have been 

Page 68



5

further developed with the YOS, Stronger Families, schools and a number of 
commissioned providers to ensure support and intervention packages are in 
place alongside the enforcement to effect behaviour change whilst these 
youngsters have been going through the criminal court processes. To address 
the lessons learned from last summer a multi-agency strategic ASB task group 
have commissioned the development of an operating framework for preventing 
and tackling serious youth disorder across the borough.

3.3 Integrated Offender Management: A GM review has been underway for some 
time to inform the future identification and intervention with the IOM cohort, a 
programme currently led by GMP. In Trafford we want to ensure that persistent 
offenders are seen as complex dependent adults within the Public Service 
Reform agenda, so that they and their families are provided with key worker 
support to ensure a holistic intervention package to address the breadth of 
issues they face which are often related to substance misuse, worklessness and 
poor access to housing. A task and finish group jointly established by Safer 
Trafford and the Strategic Housing Partnership is currently refreshing the 
Housing Offenders Protocol. We are also piloting the key worker model for IOM 
clients in partnership with the Stronger Families team.

3.4 Restorative Justice: The Partnership is working with ROC Restore to deliver 
Community Restorative Meetings where they use trained community volunteers  
to bring victims and offenders together using restorative justice techniques to 
provide satisfactory resolution to minor crimes, anti-social behaviour and 
neighbourhood disputes.

3.5 Volunteering: Using matched funding from the PCC’s Office Trafford is piloting 
an Employee Supported Policing Programme to increase the Special Constable 
establishment by targeting recruitment at Council staff. Funds have been 
allocated for 10 new Specials. If the pilot is successful we will seek to roll it out to 
other public sector partners and to local businesses. 

4.       Performance

Safer Trafford strategic objectives align with those of the Council’s Annual 
Delivery Plan as shown in the Performance Dashboard. For 2016-17 a new set 
of targets will be agreed at the Safer Trafford Board in May and will include key 
performance outcomes from some of the key priorities within the two sub-group 
action plans. A more comprehensive dashboard will be developed and reported 
at future Health and Wellbeing Board meetings.

5. Funding and Commissioning 

The Safer Trafford Partnership has seen further reductions in Community Safety 
funding since peaking in 2008/9, with around £2000.000 allocated by the Police 
and Crime Commissioner’s office in the last two years and for 2016-17. There 

Page 69



6

have also been reductions in staff and funding across all key partners.

However in 2015 the PCC’s Office developed a new Commissioning Framework 
for GM which provides opportunities for the Partnership, and in collaboration with 
residents, to bid for funds for innovative projects which reduce demand, improve 
community resilience and transform services. Trafford has a good track record 
for attracting innovation funds, such as for the Mental Health project and has 
successfully received additional funds for a new substance misuse practitioner to 
co-locate in the Safer Communities team. In addition the PCC’s Office has 
allocated considerable funds in support of Domestic Abuse and small funding 
streams for Hate Crime and Target Hardening.  In the new Crime Strategy the 
Safer Partnership pledges to collectively recognise emerging risks and maximise 
opportunities for further service integration and commissioning pilot projects and 
initiatives which seek to address them. A SWOT analysis has been introduced at 
each Board meeting, to which all partners contribute, to inform and support this 
process.

      

Page 70



1

www.traff ordpartnership.org

Safer Traff ord Partnership Crime Strategy 
2015–2018

MANAGING CRIME, 
INCREASING COMMUNITY 

CONFIDENCE 
AND PROTECTING 

VULNERABLE PEOPLE
This will be achieved through innovation, 
greater collaboration across partners and 

with communities and through integration to 
deliver services which are victim-centered, 

cost e� ective and evidenced-based 

Page 71



Foreword by the Co-Chairs

Trafford remains the safest place in Greater Manchester with the 
lowest number of crimes per 1000 head of population than that of 
any other Borough. Despite reductions in police officer numbers and a 
prioritisation of offences involving personal harm, Trafford is currently 
seeing year to date comparison reductions in burglary, drugs offences, 
theft from the person, vehicle crime, and pedal cycle theft.  

Public confidence surveys measured on a quarterly 
basis demonstrated that 95% of residents believe 
that the police are doing a good or excellent job; 97% 
of residents have confidence in the Police and 93% 
would feel safe outside after dark (an increase from 
91%). Only 1% of residents perceive a high level of 
anti-social behaviour in their local area. Similarly there 
was a 5.1% reduction in ASB recorded incidents in the 
financial year 2014-15 compared to 2013-14 which 
continues the five year downward trend.

There has been a shift in focus for partnership 
resources in recent times to harm related incidents, 
and increasingly, the police are dealing with a wide 
range of social issues that are not directly related to 
crime. Vulnerability, safeguarding and protecting 
people at risk of harm due to issues such as domestic 
abuse, poor mental health, cyber-crime, child sexual 
exploitation and people trafficking are a major part  
of their work.  This shift is reflected in the key strategic 
programmes of work being undertaken by the Safer 
Trafford Partnership in 2015-2018.

We have seen a number of changes this year which 
have affected the way we work, not least the 
introduction of the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and 
Policing Act 2014 and the new Prevent Duty. New  
ASB legislation simplified previous powers and 
has given us even greater opportunities for swift, 
collaborative civil litigation for all partners within  
the Safer Trafford Partnership.

The Counter Terrorism and Security Act conferred 
a new Prevent Duty which includes responsibilities 
for preventing violent extremism, preventing 
radicalisation and safeguarding through the channel 
referral, assessment and holistic intervention 
processes aimed at those children and adults 
identified as being vulnerable and at risk of 
radicalisation.

Whilst our overall emphasis will continue to be on 
prevention, early and targeted intervention, effective 
enforcement and rehabilitation of those involved in 
crime, we will increase efforts, through our locality 
working model, on engaging communities in co-
producing solutions which prevent crime, celebrate 
diversity, improve tolerance, build resilience 
and improve perceptions of safety within our 
neighbourhoods.

There is no doubt that we face many challenges, in 
new environments, in the coming three years but we 
are committed to continuing to make Trafford a safe 
place to live, work and visit by reducing demands on 
services where appropriate and safeguarding those 
most at risk of harm.

It is this commitment which underpins our  
Crime Strategy for 2015-2018.

Theresa Grant 
Chief Executive, Trafford Council 
Co-Chair: Safer Trafford Partnership

Superintendent Mary Doyle 
Trafford and Salford Divisions GMP 
Co-Chair: Safer Trafford Partnership

2

Page 72



Crime Strategy 2015–2018

3

We will manage crime and deliver sustainable 
solutions with our communities as equal 
partners which reflects the changing 
demographics of the borough and addresses 
the challenges brought about by austerity 
and the need for public sector reform.  
We must strengthen partnerships and work 
in the most efficient ways possible.

We aim to remain the safest place to live in 
Greater Manchester and to increase public 
confidence, particularly in our town centres. 
We will continue to support communities to 
keep themselves safe. We are committed to 
protecting vulnerable people by delivering 
innovative, integrated and holistic services 
to victims and our communities. This will be 
achieved by targeting those who currently 

create the greatest demand for services, 
identifying the triggers/risk factors that have 
resulted in those individuals and families 
becoming dependent on services and using 
this knowledge to target early intervention 
and prevention.

We fully support proposals across GM 
for integrated working at an appropriate 
geographic level in the context of whole 
system reform and will embed this way 
of working collaboratively across the 
partnership.  

Between 2015 and 2018 we will:

1  Manage crime and Anti-Social 
Behaviour (ASB) and increase 
the community’s confidence in 
the way that the partnership 
responds to these issues

2 Protect vulnerable people

3  Lead through innovation, 
and by integrating service 
delivery, provide holistic and 
collaborative approaches 
wherever possible

We will build on our successful 
six point approach:

•  Community Engagement  
and Participation

• Prevention and Diversion

• Early Intervention

• Collaborative Problem-Solving

• Targeted Intervention

• Wide-Ranging Enforcement

Page 73



4

Crime Strategy 2015–2018

Key Issues and Challenges:
•  Recognising emerging risks and 

maximising opportunities across partners 
for commissioning pilot projects and 
initiatives which seek to address them.

•  Refl ecting best practice locally, regionally 
and nationally.

•  Making GM Public Sector Reform real for 
Traff ord.

•  Reducing demand for services.

•  Increasing community self-reliance. 

Key Performance Measures:
We will produce key performance indicators, 
policies and procedures which indicate we 
are delivering the strategy and inform the 
Safer Traff ord Partnership Board that we are 
on target on a quarterly basis. This will be 
enhanced by a new ASB case management 
system which allows live reporting of target 
areas, themes and communities. 

KPI’s:
•  Maintain the position of Traff ord compared 

to other GM areas in terms of actual recorded 
crime.

•  Reduce the number of repeat victims by 
20% within the super-victim cohort 
(43 identifi ed chronic repeat victims).

•  Increase community confi dence in 
partnership working within our town 
centres by 5% (Altrincham Town Centre 
is currently 56%).

•  Work collaboratively to reduce by 10% 
the incidents and public service resources 
committed to young people missing from 
home (MFH) and missing from care (MFC).

•  Increase the number of perpetrators of 
domestic abuse we work with and who 
successfully complete the programme 
by 20% in order to reduce the risk of 
re-off ending.

•  We will increase the number of special 
constables in Traff ord through Employer 
Supported policing to achieve the maximum 
count given to us via GMP centrally.

•  We will increase the number of Domestic 
Abuse (DA) victims we work with by 10%.

Page 74



5

 PRIORITY ONE
To manage crime and ASB and 
increase community confidence  
we will:
•  Reinforce the principles of Asset Based 

Community Development (ABCD) by 
valuing the skills, strengths and capacity 
within our communities and work with 
residents to co-produce solutions to issues 
that matter most to them.

•  Use prevention and early intervention 
techniques with offenders, and those 
at risk of offending, to deter them from 
crime. Make use of innovative and holistic 
approaches which utilise all capacity within 
the partnership to address crime and ASB 
through whole-family approaches. 

•  Work with businesses to support them 
to reduce the risks and opportunities 
for acquisitive crime by making their 
businesses hostile locations for criminals.

•  Deliver Offender Management services 
which offer appropriate support for 
accommodation and employability and 
enable effective addiction recovery and 
reintegration of offenders, whilst reducing 
the risk of re-offending.

•  Take partnership action in the areas of 
Trafford which are most affected by 
environmental crime, criminal damage, 
deliberate fires and ASB. To develop 
campaigns such as “Be Responsible” and 
“Be Safer” to encourage social responsibility 
amongst communities and make Trafford  
a cleaner, greener place to live and to  
keep individuals and their homes and 
vehicles safe.

•  Work alongside colleagues from the HM 
Court Service and the Crown Prosecution 
Service to continue to bring a high 
proportion of offenders to justice.  

•  Represent Trafford at a Greater Manchester 
level and pilot and reflect best practice in 
key areas such as domestic abuse, Child 
Sexual Exploitation (CSE), sexual violence 
and business crime.

•  Understand and use the powers within the 
new Anti-Social Behaviour and Crime 2014 
Act to ensure a victim-centred approach.

•  Tailor our services to individual members of 
the community where appropriate, taking 
account of the ageing population and any 
safeguarding issues.

•  Utilise best practice across GM to increase 
domestic abuse reporting. This will 
include scoping the use of domestic abuse 
reporting centres similar to hate crime 
reporting centres in libraries, schools and 
other public buildings.

•  Support the transforming justice agenda 
with strong leadership and partnership, 
collaboratively working and seeking 
integration where possible. This will include 
the piloting of two partnership intervention 
co-ordinators who will work across the 
Integrated offender management team and 
partnerships team with those “super-victims” 
who are repeat victims of crime year on year.

•  Maximise the working relationship with 
GMP’s staff in Operation Bank which targets 
organised crime, ensuring we address 
serious organised crime as a partnership 
and to create maximum disruption to 
illegal money lending. This will also include 
modern day slavery, people trafficking, 
money laundering and sexual exploitation.

Page 75



6

 PRIORITY THREE
To deliver services in an innovative, 
integrated and holistic way we will:
•  Build and strengthen partnerships, seeking 

to integrate services wherever possible and 
commission services based on strong evidence 
which includes community intelligence and 
the customer journey and which actively 
demonstrates delivery of this strategy.

•  Support and enhance the role that is played 
by local communities and the voluntary, 
community and social enterprise sector in 
fighting crime, and addressing the causes 
of crime and improving public confidence 
in services through innovation.

•  Work with localities and devolve budgets 
where possible to ensure that responsibility 
sits within communities to co-produce and 
deliver projects utilising centralised and 
devolved funding and budgets, for example, 
from the Police and Crime Commissioner, to 
work in a smarter way.

•  Review and refresh restorative justice practices 
to involve and empower local people and to 
deliver swift, reparative, inclusive and effective 
justice within our communities.  

•  Seek to expand the partnership commitment 
to the integrated Safer Communities team 
and ensure it aligns with the emerging public 
service hub as part of the wider public sector 
reform agenda.

Crime Strategy 2015–2018

 PRIORITY TWO
To protect vulnerable people  
we will:
•  Recognise and assess vulnerability and 

address individuals and families holistically 
to ensure we meet the needs of all 
the community through effective risk 
assessment. We will take a whole-family 
approach where appropriate to  
mitigate risk.

•  Integrate, co-ordinate and sequence  
all public services into bespoke packages  
of support for families and individuals  
– getting it right first time.

•  Deliver interventions which address 
vulnerability based on the strength  
of evidence.

•  Join up the approaches of the Safer Trafford 
Partnership, the Safeguarding Board and 
the Safeguarding Children’s Board to 
ensure that vulnerable people are afforded 
the maximum protection from harm.

•  Identify and support children who are 
at risk of sexual exploitation, supporting 
all those children from low to high risk 
through smart commissioning practices 
and take robust action against offenders.

•  Ensure that victims and perpetrators of 
domestic abuse have access to high quality 
services which offer on-going support, 
increase the likelihood of the detection 
and successful prosecution of offenders 
where appropriate, and which safeguards 
the whole family. We will also aim to ensure 
that we deliver an outcome that reflects the 
wishes of the victim.

•  To support the Prevent agenda locally, 
regionally and nationally, ensuring all 
partners deliver their legal duties and 
collectively we address the risks of 
radicalisation as early as possible. We will 
monitor community tensions, improve 
tolerance and celebrate diversity within  
our communities. 

Page 76



7

Governance and Delivery
The KPI’s listed in this strategy will be 
reported quarterly to the Safer Trafford 
Partnership Board. The Safer Trafford 
Partnership will convene two sub-groups: 
Protecting Vulnerable People and Managing 
Crime and Community Confidence. Each 
sub-group will develop an implementation 
plan for its key priorities and a performance 
dashboard will also be presented to the STP 
Board on a quarterly basis for each group.

Partner agencies will communicate our 
strategic intentions across their organisations 
to ensure common ownership and 
collaborative delivery of our targets and 
priority areas of work.

A number of distinct service reform projects 
are either under way or will emerge from this 
strategy. Where appropriate short term task and 
finish groups will be formed to manage and 
deliver these projects. They will be reported to 
the relevant sub-group and some may form 
part of the strategic annual work plan for the 
Trafford Partnership, sponsored at a senior level 
by the Trafford Partnership Executive.

APPENDICES

1  List of agencies within the  
Safer Trafford Partnership 

• AIM: Trafford
•  Cheshire & Greater Manchester 

Community Rehabilitation Company 
(Purple Futures)

• Greater Manchester Fire and Rescue
• Greater Manchester Police
• Trafford Council
• National Probation Service (NPS)
• NHS
• Phoenix Futures
• Redeeming Our Communities (ROC)
• Trafford Clinical Commissioning Group  
• Trafford Housing Trust
• Women in Prison
• Youth Offending Service
• YourHousing Group

2 Key Areas of Work 
• Business Crime
• Child Sexual Exploitation
• Communication 
• Community Engagement
• Community Tension monitoring
• Cyber Crime
• Domestic Abuse
• Drugs and Alcohol services
• Early Help
• Hate Crime
• Income Generation
• Information Governance
• Locality Working
• Mental Health
• Missing from Home and Care
• Prevent
• Restorative Justice
• Serious and Organised Crime Groups
• Sexual Offences
• Victims and Victim-focussed approaches
• Volunteering
• Women Offenders
• Young People

Page 77



Partnerships and Communities Team
First Floor Extension,

Traff ord Town Hall, Talbot Road,
Stretford, Manchester M32 0TH

© 2016 Traff ord Council
partnershipsteam@traff ord.gov.uk

0161 912 1173
www.traff ordpartnership.org

www.twitter.com/TPAction 

www.traff ordpartnership.orgPage 78



SAFER TRAFFORD PERFORMANCE DASHBOARD 2015-16

DEFINITION

2014/15 
Actual/
Target 

description

2015/16 
TARGETS DESCRIPTION Q1 

Target
Q1 

Actual
Q2 

Target
Q2 

Actual
Q3 

Target
Q3 

Actual
 RAG 
Rating Comments 

Maintain the position 
of Trafford compared 
to other GM areas in 
terms of Total Crime 
Rate.   

1st 1st
Trafford Council 
Annual Delivery 

Plan (ADP)
1st 1st 1st 1st 1st 1st Green IQUANTA 

data

Reduce the number 
of repeat victims by 
20% within the 
super-victim cohort 
(43 identified super 
victims)

 Reduction 
in repeat 
incidents

80% ADP ANNUAL TARGET  

 

Stretford 78% ADP 74% 75% 75% 63% 78% 75% Amber 

Overall 
average 
increase in 
confidence 
across 
town 
centres is 
currently at 
6.5%

Urmston 82% ADP  83%  85% 82% 91% Green  
Sale 90% ADP  96%  75% 90% 77% Red  

Increase community 
confidence in 
partnership working 
within our town 
centres by 5% 
Altrincham Town 
Centre – 56%

Altrincham 61% ADP  62%  87% 61% 94% Green

P
age 79



SAFER TRAFFORD PERFORMANCE DASHBOARD 2015-16

To work 
collaboratively to 
reduce the number of 
incidents by 10% and 
public service 
resources committed 
to missing from home 
(MFH) and missing 
from care (MFC) for 
vulnerable young 
people.

MFC - More 
than than 24 

hrs
230 (total) ADP 60 59 120 120 175 168 Green

MFH - 
Known to 

social care
222 (total) ADP 55 45 110 102 170 169 Green

 

No's worked 
with 78 ADP      Annual target

 

To increase the 
number of 
perpetrators of 
domestic abuse we 
work with and who 
successfully 
complete the 
programme by 20% 
in order to reduce the 
risk of re-offending

No's 
successfully 
completed 

60 ADP           Annual target

 

P
age 80



Safer Trafford Partnership 
Board

Co –Chaired - Theresa Grant & C/Supt  Mary Doyle 
 

Strong Communities BoardHealth and Well Being Board

Safer Trafford Partnership Structure 2015

Protecting Vulnerable People

Chair Cathy Rooney 

Managing crime and Community 
Confidence

Co Chair Jim Liggett, Stuart Taskar  

GM Police and Crime Commissioner’s 
Office

Trafford Safeguarding Adults Board
Chair – Gina Lawrence

AGMA

Trafford Safeguarding Children Board
Chair – Bob Postlethwaite

Prevent Strategic Forum
Chair- Joanne Hyde

Trafford Resilience Forum
Chair David Hooley 

Spotlight /IOM 
Chair – DCI Ben Ewart

Partington Womens Pilot Group
Lead: Marion Meakin

CSE Task and Finish Group
Lead: Catherine Fleming 

Public Service Reform 
Governance 

DA Strategic Delivery Forum 
Chair: Kerry Purnell

ROC Restore RJ project
Lead: Paul Burton

Locality project Task & Finish Groups
e.g. Sale Crime Group
Junior Home Watch

Challenger
 (Serious & Organised Crime)

Lead: DCI Ben Ewart

Trafford YOS Board
Chair- Manjit Searle

Trafford Partnership Board

Safer Trafford Partnership Structure 2015

P
age 81



T
his page is intentionally left blank



TRAFFORD COUNCIL 

 
Report to:  Health & Wellbeing Board  
Date:    15th April 2016 
Report for:   Information 
Report of:  Andy Worthington (Chair of Strategic Sport & Physical 

Activity Partnership) 
  
Report Title 
 

 
Strategic Sport & Physical Activity Partnership update 
 

 
Purpose 
 

 
To provide an update to the Health & Wellbeing Board on the priorities, activities and 
progress of the Strategic Sport & Physical Activity Partnership. 
  

 
Recommendations 
 

 
Performance and update to be noted. 
 

 
 
Appendices 
 
A Performance Scorecard 
B Project Tracker 
C Priorities 
 
 
Contact person for access to background papers and further information: 
 
Name:  Kerry Purnell     Phone: 0161 912 2115 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 83

Agenda Item 10b



Strategic Sport & Physical Activity Partnership update 
 

1. Strategic Priorities 
In October 2015 the Strategic Sport & Physical Activity Partnership (SS&PAP) 
undertook an exercise where it looked to rationalise it’s priorities in response 
to the introduction of the Greater Manchester Moving Blueprint for Physical 
Activity and Sport¹, and the shift in strategic context this presented.   

 
As a result of this the SS&PAP decided to focus efforts on the following six 
broad themes (see supporting document – “SS&PAP prioritisation”): 

 Active Outdoors 

 Active Children & Young People 

 Active Adults 

 Active Workplaces 

 Volunteering 

 School and Community Sport Links 
 

All of these themes support the main overarching aim of the group, which is to 
“increase 1 x 30 minutes participation in sport and physical activity across all 
ages (particularly from those who are currently characterised as inactive).” 

 
2. Partnership Projects 

A number of projects have been initiated by the SS&PAP over recent months 
– all of which are ambitious in nature and directly linked to the strategic 
priorities. 

 
a. Recreational Running – Established in November 2015, the Longford 

Park parkrun has gone from strength to strength.  On average 267 people 
run the 5km event that takes place in the park on a Saturday morning each 
week.  A further piece of work is being undertaken to understand the 
impact of this event on the physical activity levels and behaviours of its 
participants.  The wider project also involves the introduction of a second 
Trafford parkrun, the physical marking of a network of run routes across 
the Borough, and the establishment of a series of Beginner Running 
Groups. 

 
b. Active Early Years – This project is focused on informing and shaping 

physical activity behaviour at the earliest possible opportunity by working 
with young people aged between 0 and 5 years and their parents (pilot 
areas: Stretford and Partington).  Among the tactics being used in this 
multi-agency project is an attempt to raise awareness and upskill Health 
Visitors around stage appropriate physical activity, similarly an offer of 
training and support to child care providers (nurseries and childminders) 
and the establishment of new weekly activity sessions at the two 
Children’s Centres. 

 
c. Trafford Volunteer Inspire Programme – Linked to a Greater 

Manchester-wide initiative, Trafford VIP is an online platform that provides 
a single point of reference for both Trafford residents who want to get in to 
sports volunteering as well as activity providers who are actively looking 

Page 84



for new volunteers.  The ambition is, by March 2017, to encourage a 
further 500 residents in to sports volunteering. 

 
d. TCCC Directory of Services – CSC have presented twice at SS&PAP 

meetings with a view to understanding how physical activity opportunities 
can be represented through the Directory of Services.  A meeting is 
scheduled to take place with a number of the providers who sit on the 
group to agree a co-ordinated response where the most suitable, high 
quality opportunities are the ones that are signposted to. 

 
3. Performance 

To track the performance of these projects and the group’s wider commitment 
to raising the physical activity levels of Trafford residents, a performance 
scorecard has been produced (see supporting document – “SS&PAP 
performance scorecard April 2016”). 

 
4. Future Planning and Next Steps 

Moving forward the SS&PAP intends to consider how it can better contribute 
to the agreed priorities and targets of not only the Health and Wellbeing Board 
to which it is aligned, but also the Stronger Communities and Growth Board 
within the new Trafford Partnership structure.  This will also enable the group 
to better understand Trafford’s collective contribution to the new DCMS sport 
strategy² that was published in December 2015.   

 
In turn this may require a review of the group’s membership, terms of 
reference and strategic priorities.  It is anticipated that this period of transition 
will happen over the coming months with an overview of the progress made 
provided in time for the next Health and Wellbeing Board meeting in July.  

 
5. Strategy Links 

 
¹Greater Manchester Moving: A Blueprint for Physical Activity and Sport 
http://www.greatersport.co.uk/GMMoving 

 
²Sporting Future: A New Strategy for an Active Nation 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/
486622/Sporting_Future_ACCESSIBLE.pdf 

  

Page 85

http://www.greatersport.co.uk/GMMoving
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/486622/Sporting_Future_ACCESSIBLE.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/486622/Sporting_Future_ACCESSIBLE.pdf


 

Trafford Strategic Sport & Physical Activity Partnership – Performance Scorecard 
 

 
 

Outcome: More People, More Active, More Often 
 

 
 

Population: All residents in Trafford 
 

Our priorities: 
 Increase 1 x 30 minutes participation in sport and physical activity across all ages (particularly from those who are currently characterised as inactive) 
 Maximise opportunities of the use of green space infrastructure for physical activity in the borough such as running, cycling and walking 
 Encourage workplace activity programmes    Increase volunteering opportunities in sports    Support links between school sport and the community 

 
 

 

How well are we doing? 
 

 

We know that 39.1% of the adult 
population (16+) in Trafford take part 
in sport at least once a week.  With 
regards to regular participation we 
know that 20.3% take part in sport on 
three or more occasions each week,  
which increases to 25.8% participating three times a 
week or more under a broader sport and active 
recreation definition (NI8). 
 

Furthermore, we know that women are less active.  
Similarly, but on a sub-regional level, we know that 
older people, people with a disability, people from a 
black and ethnic minority background, and people not  
in employment are also less active. 

(Data source: APS9) 
 

 
 

We know that 55.9% of the adult 
population (16+) in Trafford take 
part in at least 150 minutes of 
moderate or vigorous intensity 
physical activity per week, which 
meets the Chief Medical Officer’s  
physical activity guidelines.  We also know that 
28.2% take part for less than 30 minutes each 
week with 23.5% considered sedentary (0 
minutes per week). 

 

As with sports participation we know that physical 
activity rates are generally lower among women, 
ethnic minorities, and those with a disability. 

(Data source: PHE period 2013) 

Our approach: 
In order to deliver a population-level shift in sport and physical activity participation in Trafford the Partnership will look to: 
 INNOVATE – Have a positive impact on health by activating cross-networks of expertise and promoting the benefits of sport within educational, workplace and community environments;           
 COORDINATE – Promote borough-wide activity and target health inequalities in areas of deprivation, particularly focusing on vulnerable communities with lower life expectancy;                          
 ENGAGE – Help to optimise use of our assets and increase participation levels through partnership working and promotion; and 

 DELIVER – Increase participation through evidence-based interventions that support behaviour change with an emphasis on areas where there are gaps in provision. 
     

WALKING 

 

 
 

34.8% of adults (16+) in Trafford have 
undertaken at least some active or 

recreational walking each week. 
Furthermore, 31.9% walk for at least 

30 minutes each week. 
 

Data source: PHE period 2013 

RUNNING 

 

 
 

9.18% of adults (16+) in Trafford have 
participated at least once in athletics 

/running over the past year. 
Additionally, 4% across Greater 

Manchester run at least once a week. 
 

Data source: APS9 

CYCLING 

 

 
 

9.68% of adults (16+) in Trafford have 
participated at least once in cycling 

over the past year. Furthermore, 
3.51% across Greater Manchester 

cycle at least once a week. 
 

Data source: APS9 

PHYSICAL LITERACY 

 

 
 

7.6% of reception aged children in 
Trafford do not meet the expected 

level within Early Learning Goal 
associated with Moving and Handling. 

5.7% within Health and Self-Care. 
 

Data source: Early Learning Goals 2015 

VOLUNTEERING 

 

 
 

13.2% of adults (16+) across Greater 
Manchester have volunteered in 

sport at least once over the past year. 
Furthermore, 3.37% have undertaken 

volunteer coaching. 
 

Data source: APS9 

9.18% 9.68% 13.2% 34.8% 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

7.6% 

39.1% 55.9% 

15%

25%

35%

45%

55%

65%

12/13
APS7

13/14
APS8

14/15
APS9

15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20

-0.15% -1.22% +0.40% +2.80% 

-2.60% 

P
age 86

http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwinhMbmwL3KAhXLuRQKHexvAncQjRwIBw&url=http://all-free-download.com/free-vector/bicycle-silhouette-vector.html&bvm=bv.112454388,d.d24&psig=AFQjCNFEBt3gJV0plezBgPrT_XN9eadVog&ust=1453555077738650
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjxsaeXwr3KAhWJRhQKHRGHDzgQjRwIBw&url=https://www.pinterest.com/alicekratkast/icons/&bvm=bv.112454388,d.d24&psig=AFQjCNER46TN_bH-93gNWO2OHKDg-5ot0Q&ust=1453555447591156
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjKncOqxL3KAhVH5xoKHa_nCnkQjRwIBw&url=http://silhouettesfree.com/silhouettes/men/10&bvm=bv.112454388,d.d24&psig=AFQjCNGebsp5gPJnEqouAwvfuJ8AZ1C6Lg&ust=1453556032044568


 

Trafford Strategic Sport & Physical Activity Partnership – Project Tracker 
 

 RECREATIONAL RUNNING 
 Start date: 1/2/16     End date: 31/3/17 
 Project objective: To increase the number of people running in Trafford. 
 

Performance indicators Q1 – Feb-Jun 16 Q2 – Jul-Sep 16 Q3 – Oct-Dec 16 Q4 – Jan-Mar 17 

Target Actual Target Actual Target Actual Target Actual 

Parkruns established 2 1 2  3  3  

Weekly Parkrun runners 400 267 400  600  600  

Run leaders trained 24 0 24  24  24  

Beginner Running Groups established 2 0 4  5  6  

Weekly Beginner Running Group runners 30 0 60  75  90  

‘3-2-1’ routes mapped 2 0 4  6  10  

Sport Relief Mile events delivered 2 2       

Sport Relief Mile runners 300 197       

Trust10 event established 0 0 1      
 

 

 TRAFFORD VOLUNTEER INSPIRE PROGRAMME 
 Start date: 1/2/16     End date: 31/3/17 
 Project objective: To increase the number of people volunteering in sport in Trafford. 
 

Performance indicators Q1 – Feb-Jun 16 Q2 – Jul-Sep 16 Q3 – Oct-Dec 16 Q4 – Jan-Mar 17 

Target Actual Target Actual Target Actual Target Actual 

Active volunteers 100 25 200  300  500  

Volunteer profiles  27       

Provider profiles  12       

Volunteer opportunities posted  8       

 
 
  

 

 
 ACTIVE EARLY YEARS 
 Start date: 1/4/16     End date: 31/3/17 
 Project objective: To increase the proportion of children in Trafford leaving Key Stage 1 who demonstrate the requisite  
 motivation, confidence, physical competence, knowledge and understanding to value and take responsibility for  
 engagement in physical activities for life. 
 

Performance indicators Q1 – Apr-Jun 16 Q2 – Jul-Sep 16 Q3 – Oct-Dec 16 Q4 – Jan-Mar 17 

Target Actual Target Actual Target Actual Target Actual 

Micro-grant applications received  0       

Micro-grants awarded 50 0 100      

Micro-grant throughput impact  0       

Bespoke nursery training delivered 3 1 6  9  10  

Nursery staff trained  6       

Let’s Play awareness training delivered 1 0 2  3    

Health Visitors trained 4 0 8  12    

Other professionals/deliverers trained 15 0 15      

Let’s Play franchise sessions established 2 0 4      

Let’s Play franchise session throughput  0       

Referral vouchers distributed 30 0 60  100  150  

Attendances by voucher recipients  0       

Bounts partners confirmed 3 0 5  8  10  

 
 

 TRAFFORD SPORTS CAPITAL GRANT SCHEME 

 

Performance indicators Q1 – Apr-Jun 16 Q2 – Jul-Sep 16 Q3 – Oct-Dec 16 Q4 – Jan-Mar 17 

Target Actual Target Actual Target Actual Target Actual 

Applications received  18       

Grants awarded  12 (15)       

Total grant funding awarded £104k £74k       

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

P
age 87



 

 

Trafford Strategic Sport & Physical Activity Partnership – Priorities 

Sport and Leisure priorities are aligned to and support the 
priorities for health and wellbeing 

Effective Strategic & Local Partnerships delivering a 
sustainable community sport & leisure offer 

Trafford Council Sport 

& Leisure Strategy 

2013-17 

Maximise 
opportunities of the 
use of green space 
infrastructure for 
physical activity in 
the borough such 
as running, cycling 

and walking 

Develop an 
informed and 

skilled paid 
and 

volunteer 
workforce 

Increase 
volunteering 
opportunities 

in sports 

Encourage 
workplace 

activity 
programmes 

Promote physical 
literacy in the 
early years, at 
school and at 

home 

Increase 1 x 30 minutes participation in 
sport and physical activity across all 

ages (particularly from those who are 
currently characterised as inactive) 

Support links 
between 

school sport 
and sport in 

the community 

Trafford Strategic Sport 

& Physical Activity 

Partnership Objectives 

GM Moving Strategic 

Pledges 

Children and 
young people 

Adults 

Increase the number of people cycling 

Increase the number of people walking 
and running 

Current Projects 
Recreational Running        British Cycling/TfGM          
Active Trafford Greenspace (Walking)                                
GP Social Prescribing / TCCC DoS                     

Active Early Years 

/ KS1  

Themes ACTIVE OUTDOORS ACTIVE ADULTS 
ACTIVE CHILDREN 

& YOUNG PEOPLE 
VOLUNTEERING 

ACTIVE 

WORKPLACES 

SCHOOL & 

COMMUNTY SPORT 

Trafford VIP 

P
age 88



1

TRAFFORD COUNCIL 

Report to: Health & Wellbeing Board 
Date: 15th April 2016
Report for: Information 
Report of Abdul Razzaq, Director of Public Health

Report Title:

Purpose:

Recommendations

Contact person for access to background papers and further information:
Name: Eleanor Roaf Phone 0161 912 2115

Increasing Healthy Life Expectancy in Trafford

To provide a briefing for Health and Well Being Board members on healthy 
life expectancy and other life expectancy measures and their use in Trafford

None – provided for information only

Page 89

Agenda Item 10c



2

Increasing Healthy Life Expectancy in Trafford

1. Life expectancy and Healthy Life expectancy – what’s the difference and 
why does it matter?

Life expectancy (LE) is an estimate of how many years a person might be 
expected to live, whereas healthy life expectancy (HLE) is an estimate of how 
many years they might live in a 'healthy' state. HLE is a key summary measure of a 
population's health, and is an important indicator of the need for health and social 
care services in an area.

2. Why is healthy life expectancy an issue for Trafford?

Although Trafford’s life expectancy, for men and women, is slightly higher than the 
England average, this masks considerable variation across the borough. In general, 
residents in the north of the borough have lower life expectancy than those in the 
south. This is also reflected in healthy life expectancy across the borough, which, 
especially for women at age 65, is lower than would be expected from our life 
expectancy.  The gap between our more affluent and our poorer areas is much 
greater for healthy life expectancy than for life expectancy.  Addressing this, and 
getting the more deprived wards closer to the England average, would lead to 
significant improvements in our population’s health and wellbeing, reduce the need 
for services, and help deliver economic prosperity and sustainable communities. 

79.1

85.8

56.0

71.4
75.7

82.0

56.3

69.2

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%
54
56
58
60
62
64
66
68
70
72
74
76
78
80
82
84
86

Female LE Female HLE Male LE Male HLE

Figure 1: Trends in Life Expectancy and Healthy Life Expectancy by
Index of multiple deprivaton for areas in Trafford (2009 to 2013)  

Index of Multiple Deprivation ranked from most deprived to least deprived (percentiles)

A
ge

 in
 y

ea
rs

Women
23.1 years  

Men
12.8 years

Women
14.4 years

Men
19.4 years

Source: 

Page 90



3

For the period 2009 to 2013 the average healthy life expectancy at birth for men was 
64.7years in Trafford compared to 63.5 years in England. For women these figures 
were 66.0 years in Trafford and 64.8 years in England, (ONS, 2015).  Data on 
healthy life expectancy from different years and from different datasets is 
inconsistent and subject to variation.  However, the gap in healthy life expectancy 
between the more deprived areas and the more affluent wards remains a constant.
Data on healthy life expectancy are included in the health indicators used to make up 
the Index of Multiple Deprivation (IMD, 2015), (source: info Trafford).  Trafford has 
relatively low levels of deprivation and is in the top third of local authorities for this 
measure. However this disguises poor performance on the health indicators within 
the model with Trafford in the bottom third of English authorities on this measure, 
(Table 2). 

Page 91



4

Deprivation rank

1
most

32844
least

Figure 3: Trafford Health Deprivation & Disability Domain by area 
(LSOA) 2015

 The Health Deprivation & Disability Domain measures the risk of premature death 
and the impairment of quality of life through poor physical or mental health. The 
domain measures morbidity, disability and premature mortality but not aspects of 
behaviour or environment that may be predictive of future health deprivation.

IMD
Income

Employment
Education

Health Crime

Barriers to Housing and 

Services Living Environment
IDACI

IDAOPI
0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350 Table 2: IMD 2015, Component Measure for Trafford

Source: Info Trafford, 2015

Page 92



5

Further data from the recent Royal Society of Arts (2015) study shows that Trafford 
performs particularly badly in the care of people with serious mental illness. The 
study reported disproportionate levels of physical illness and early death in people 
with serious mental illness, on average dying 3 years earlier than the rest of the 
population in Trafford. This rate is significantly higher than the rate for England. 

3. Premature and Preventable mortality in Trafford

Premature mortality is defined as deaths before the 75th birthday. On average 32% 
of people in Trafford die before this birthday.  Of these deaths, 66% are classed as 
preventable, there are factors involved in this death that if modified would have 
reduced the risk of death.  The chart below show the main factors implicated in 
preventable deaths in Trafford: smoking remains the biggest single modifiable factor.  
Reducing the risk of preventable mortality will also have a positive impact on healthy 
life expectancy.

Figure 4: Causes of death and preventable death in Trafford per year. 

Deaths of Under 75s considered 
preventable

1,902
deaths per year

Source: Trafford Public Health Report, 2015

4. Addressing Healthy Life Expectancy and Preventable Mortality in Trafford

Improving healthy life expectancy is Trafford’s Health and Wellbeing Board 2016-19 
overarching aim. To achieve this, five key areas where performance could be 

Page 93



6

improved, and where such improvement would lead to significant improvements in 
outcomes, have been identified and agreed by the Health and Wellbeing Board.
The five areas chosen also meet the following criteria:
 Impact on outcomes that are important  across different organisations – involve 

all stakeholders
 Link to the Locality Plan and the GM Strategic Plan
 Support a sustainable Trafford and provide return on investment
 Be based on need and supported by a robust evidence base
 Strengthen and utilise our local and Greater Manchester assets 
 Reduced preventable mortality, especially in higher risk populations
 Improve health, wellbeing and healthy life expectancy for all

The five Health and Wellbeing Priorities are:
 To reduce the impact of mental illness
 To reduce physical inactivity
 To reduce the number of people who smoke or use tobacco
 To reduce harms from alcohol
 To improve cancer prevention, and in particular the uptake of screening

5. Next Steps

There are existing partnerships for the latter four of priorities, and a Mental Health 
Harm Reduction Partnership is being established (under the aegis of the Joint 
Commissioning Board Mental Health work stream).  These partnerships will agree 
the priorities, action plans and outcome measures for each area, and will report back 
on progress to the Health and Wellbeing Board.  A communication and engagement 
plan for the work will be developed alongside this, and will be owned by the Health 
and Wellbeing Board.  Quarterly reports will be available and these will be shared 
with the Trafford Partnership Board.  We will also be using the Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment to track our progress on all measures.

6. References

Office of National Statistics: Healthy life expectancy by Local Authority area (2015)

Index of Multiple Deprivation: https://www.gov.uk/government/.../english-indices-of-
deprivation-2015

Royal Society of Arts: https://www.thersa.org/action-and-research/rsa...and.../mental-health

Page 94



1

Trafford Health and Wellbeing Board
April 2016

Increasing Healthy Life Expectancy – Performance measures

The table below gives the suggested performance measures for the five areas identified for their impact on increasing healthy life expectancy in 
Trafford (and reducing the inequalities within this measure). Please note that although indicative mental health harm reduction measures have 
been produced these have not yet been agreed by the Joint Commissioning Board Mental Health work stream. This agreement is required in 
order that the mental harm reduction work is embedded within this new governance architecture. The final mental health measures will be 
presented to the July 2016 HWBB meeting. For the physical activity measures, please note there is ongoing discussion about the data sources 
to be used as national datasets and collection methods are still to be finalised. There are also discrepancies between local and national 
datasets that need to be properly understood.

BenchmarkRef Theme Aim Performance Measure Local/ 
National

Score Year

Comment

1.1 Physical Activity To reduce the 
percentage of people 
in Trafford who take 
less than 30 minutes 
exercise per week 

Percentage of people 
taking less than 30 
minutes exercise pre 
week from Active Lives 
survey

National 28.2% 2013 23.5% considered 
sedentary (0 minutes per 
week).  Target is 150 
minutes per week

1.2 Physical activity to increase the 
number of people 
walking each week

Percentage of people 
walking each week from 
Active Lives survey

national 31.90% 2013  

1.3 Physical activity to increase the 
number of people  
running each week

Percentage of people 
running each week

national 4% 2013 G Manchester data, not 
Trafford specific

1.4 Physical Activity to increase the 
number of people 
cycling  each week

Percentage of people 
cycling each week

national 3.51% 2013 G Manchester data, not 
Trafford specific

P
age 95



2

BenchmarkRef Theme Aim Performance Measure Local/ 
National

Score Year

Comment

1.5 Physical Activity to increase the 
number of people 
volunteering to work 
on sports and 
physical activity

 Percentage of people 
volunteering

local 13.20%  G Manchester data, not 
Trafford specific

1.6 Physical Activity to increase physical 
literacy in early years

 Physical competence at 
school entry from school 
readiness assessment

    

2.1 Alcohol Create an IT 
response to provide 
intelligence for 
Health Leads to 
assess licensing 
applications against 
health outcomes.

Alcohol Harm Mapping 
Tool used in 100% of 
alcohol license 
applications

Local N/A   

2.2 Alcohol Review application 
pathway to 
incorporate this 
process.

Licensing Application 
Pathway Reviewed with 
Health Element 

Local N/A   

2.3 Alcohol An increased use of 
Health Checks by 
GP’s and 
Pharmacies to 
screen for alcohol 
misuse 

Number of NHS Health 
Checks delivered 
including completion of 
AUDIT alcohol 
screening questionnaire

National 5,367 2014-15  

2.4 Alcohol Increase awareness 
and use Audit 
Alcohol Screening 
Tool in Primary Care 
(FAST or AUDIT-C)

Proportion of adults 
screened using an 
AUDIT alcohol 
screening questionnaire 
in primary care 

Local not yet 
available

  

P
age 96



3

BenchmarkRef Theme Aim Performance Measure Local/ 
National

Score Year

Comment

2.5 Alcohol Provider lead 
activities on National 
and Local 
Campaigns 

A minimum of 3 
campaigns: delivered 
across Trafford, 
amplified via the media 
and evaluated

Local N/A   

2.6 Alcohol Reduce number of 
Hospital Admissions 
for alcohol-related 
conditions

Number of alcohol-
related hospital 
admissions (narrow 
definition)

National 1,418 2013-14  

3.1 Tobacco Prevention of illicit 
and illegal tobacco 
sales

Number of reports to 
Trading Standards 
regarding underage or 
illegal sales

North West 394 Q1&Q2 
2015-16

 

3.2 Tobacco Reduction of 
smoking prevalence 
in routine and 
manual groups

Smoking prevalence in 
routine and manual 
group

National 27.8% 2014  

3.3 Tobacco Protecting children 
from exposure to 
second hand smoke

Prevalence of smoking 
at time of delivery

National 8.3% 2014-15  

4.1 Cancer To reduce the age-
standardised rate of 
mortality from all 
cancers in persons 
less than 75 years of 
age per 100,000 
population

National 137.6 2012-
2014

 

4.2.i Cancer To increase the 
proportion of eligible 
patients attending for 
breast screening 

Proportion of eligible 
patients attending for 
breast screening 

National 70.50% 2014-
2015

 

P
age 97



4

BenchmarkRef Theme Aim Performance Measure Local/ 
National

Score Year

Comment

4.2.ii Cancer To increase the 
breast screening 
uptake rate of the 
bottom 5 performing 
practices in Trafford

Average breast 
screening uptake rate of 
the bottom 5 performing 
practices in Trafford

Local 53.90% 2014-
2015

 

4.3.i Cancer To increase the 
proportion of eligible 
patients attending for 
cervical screening

Proportion of eligible 
patients attending for 
cervical screening

National 79.90% 30.9.15  

4.3.ii Cancer To increase the 
cervical screening 
uptake rate of the 
bottom 5 performing 
practices in Trafford

Average cervical 
screening uptake of the 
bottom 5 performing 
practices in Trafford

Local 72.90% 30.9.15  

4.4.i Cancer To increase the 
proportion of eligible 
patients completing 
their bowel screening 

Proportion of eligible 
patients completing their 
bowel screening 

National 54.40% 2012/2013  

4.4.ii Cancer To increase the 
bowel screening 
uptake rate of the 
bottom 5 performing 
practices in Trafford

Average bowel 
screening uptake of the 
bottom 5 performing 
practices in Trafford

Local 34.60% 2012/2013  

P
age 98



TRAFFORD MBC

Report to: Trafford Health and Well Being Board
Date: 5th April 2016

Report author: Abdul Razzaq

Report Title

Trafford Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA) Refresh 

Purpose

The purpose of this report is to update the Trafford Health and Well Being Board 
(HWBB) on the refresh of the Trafford Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA).

Trafford Health and Wellbeing Board’s first pharmaceutical needs assessment was 
published for 1st April 2014. The HWBB is required to publish a revised assessment 
within three years and this must be completed by 1st April 2017.

The PNA must include a statement outlining the services identified in the assessment 
which affect pharmaceutical needs. There may be services provided or arranged by 
Trafford Council, the Health and Wellbeing Board, NHS England, a CCG, or NHS trust 
(including foundation trusts) which could, if they were included in a PNA, be provided 
by pharmaceutical services contractors. Only those NHS services which affect the 
need for pharmaceutical services or potential pharmaceutical services need to be 
included.

There is a minimum period of 60 days for consultation. Hard copies of the PNA must 
be available on request. 

The Trafford Health and Well being Board is asked to note the update on the refresh of 
the Trafford PNA and timelines for completion. 

Contact Person for access to background papers and further information:

Name: Abdul Razzaq, Director of Public Health 

Extension: 1300

Page 99

Agenda Item 11



1

1. Executive Summary

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide update Trafford Health and Wellbeing 
Board of their statutory obligations in relation to the preparation of 
pharmaceutical needs assessments.

1.2 The paper also sets out what must be included in, and the process that must 
be followed when preparing and updating the pharmaceutical needs 
assessment.

1.3 The paper then sets out issues in relation to preparing the pharmaceutical 
needs assessment and the possible risk of legal challenge if a pharmaceutical 
needs assessment is not up to date or fit for purpose.

1.4 Finally the report sets out the financial implications of the Health and 
Wellbeing Board’s statutory obligations and asks the organisations which 
must statutorily be represented on the Board to agree to meeting those 
financial implications.

2. Key Matters for the Health and Wellbeing Board’s Consideration

2.1 The Health and Wellbeing Board are asked to:

 Note their legal responsibilities in relation to pharmaceutical needs 
assessment.

 Note that the Board’s first pharmaceutical needs assessment was 
published on 1st April 2014 and the updated version needs to be published 
by 1st April 2017.

 Note Greater Manchester Shared Services will be managing the process 
and be responsible for producing the published version for Trafford 
Council to upload to their internet site.

 Agree that the financial implications of preparing, reviewing and updating 
pharmaceutical needs assessments need to be met.

3. Background

Overview

3.1 If a person (a pharmacist, a dispenser of appliances, or in some cases a GP) 
want to provide NHS pharmaceutical services, they are required to apply to 
the NHS to be included on a pharmaceutical list. Pharmaceutical lists are 
compiled and held by NHS England this is commonly known as the NHS 
“market entry system”.

3.2 From 1st April 2013, Health and Wellbeing Boards were responsible for 
developing and updating Pharmaceutical Needs Assessments (PNAs). The 
primary purpose of a PNA is to guide the commissioning of community 
pharmacy services. 

3.3 A person who wishes to provide NHS pharmaceutical services must generally 
apply to NHS England to be included on a relevant list by proving they are 

Page 100



2

able to meet pharmaceutical needs as set out in the Pharmaceutical Needs 
Assessments.

Pharmaceutical Services

3.4 The pharmaceutical services to which each PNA must relate are all the 
pharmaceutical services that may be provided under arrangements made by 
NHS England. These are:

a) the provision of pharmaceutical services (including directed services) by a 
person on a pharmaceutical list. There are three types of pharmaceutical 
services:

 “essential services” which every community pharmacy providing NHS 
pharmaceutical services must provide and is set out in their terms of 
service. These services include the dispensing of medicines, promotion of 
healthy lifestyles and support for self-care;

 “advanced services” – services community pharmacy contractors and 
dispensing appliance contractors can provide subject to accreditation as 
necessary. 

 “locally commissioned services” (known as enhanced services) 
commissioned by NHS England. 

Directed services are those services set out in Secretary of State Directions to 
NHS England, for example services to care homes and language access.

b) the provision of local pharmaceutical services under an LPS scheme. This 
allows NHS England to commission community pharmaceutical services 
tailored to specific local requirements

c) the dispensing of drugs and appliances by a person on a dispensing 
doctors list. Only those services set out in their pharmaceutical services 
terms of reference is included within the definition of pharmaceutical 
services. GP enhances services such as childhood immunisation 
programmes are not “pharmaceutical services”.

Information to be contained in Pharmaceutical Needs Assessments

Necessary services: current provision

3.5 In order to assess the adequacy of provision, all providers of such services 
need to be mapped. This mapping will need to include providers and premises 
within the HWB area and also those that may lies outside but who provide 
services to the population within the HWB area.

Necessary services: gaps in provision

3.6 Having assessed local needs and the current provision of services, the PNA 
needs to identify any gaps that need to be filled. The PNA may also identify a 
gap in provision that will need to be provided in future circumstance, for 
example a new housing development is being planned. 

Page 101



3

3.7 Gaps in provision are not just gaps in pharmaceutical health needs but also 
gaps by service type. For example, a locality may have adequate provision of 
essential services but may have need for more specialist services, such as 
NHS supply of emergency contraception.

3.8 Examples of need, or gaps in service, that Health and Wellbeing Boards may 
identify include:
 Inadequate provision of essential services at certain times of the day or 

week
 Opening hours that do not reflect the needs of the local population
 Areas with little or no access to pharmaceutical services, etc.

Other relevant services: current provision

3.9 The Health and Wellbeing Board will have identified those services that are 
necessary for the provision of adequate pharmaceutical services. There may 
however, be pharmaceutical services that provide improvements to the 
provision or better access for the public. The PNA must include a statement 
about these services.

Improvements and better access: gaps in provision

3.10 It is important that the PNA identifies services that are not currently being 
provided and which will be needed to secure future improvements to 
pharmaceutical services – common examples of this are major industrial, 
communications or housing development, service redesign or re-provision. 
Provision may also change where significant economic downturn is expected. 

3.11 HWBs can also identify those services, which are currently not being 
commissioned by NHS England, local authorities or CCGs but may be service 
that could be commissioned in the future.

3.12 NHS England does not have to meet the needs identified by the Health and 
Wellbeing Board.

Other services

3.13 The PNA must include a statement outlining the services identified in the 
assessment which affect pharmaceutical needs. There may be services 
provided or arranged by Trafford Council, the Health and Wellbeing Board, 
NHS England, a CCG, or NHS trust (including foundation trusts) which could, 
if they were included in a PNA, be provided by pharmaceutical services 
contractors. For example, a large health centre providing a stop smoking 
service. Only those NHS services which affect the need for pharmaceutical 
services or potential pharmaceutical services need to be included.

How the assessment is carried out

3.14 The PNA must include a statement setting out:

Page 102



4

 how the Health and Wellbeing Board has determined the localities in the 
area,

 the different needs of different localities in its area including the needs of 
those people in the area sharing a protected characteristic, for example, a 
large travellers’ site; and 

 a report on the consultation undertaken on the PNA.

Maps

3.15 All Health and Wellbeing Boards are also required to include a map in their 
PNA which identifies the premises at which pharmaceutical services are 
provided. This must be kept up to date.

Publication and Updating PNAs

3.16 Trafford Health and Wellbeing Board’s first pharmaceutical needs assessment 
was published for 1st April 2014. The HWB is required to publish a revised 
assessment within three years and this must be completed by 1st April 2017.

3.17 Health and Wellbeing Boards are also required to publish a revised 
assessments as soon as is reasonably practical after identifying significant 
changes to the availability of pharmaceutical services since the publication of 
its PNA unless it is satisfied that making a revised assessment would be a 
disproportionate response to those changes. Supplementary statements have 
been provided to the Trafford Health and Well Being Board on changes to the 
Trafford PNA. 

Consultation

3.18 The Health and Wellbeing Board must consult a specified list of bodies at 
least once during the process of developing the PNA. These bodies are:
 The Local Pharmaceutical Committee;
 The Local Medical Committee;
 Any persons on pharmaceutical lists and any dispensing doctors;
 Any Local Pharmaceutical Services chemist in the area with whome the 

NHS Commissioning Board has made arrangements for the provision of 
any local pharmaceutical servies;

 Any local Healthwatch or any other patient, consumer and community 
group which (in the opinion of the Health and Wellbeing Board) has an 
interest;

 Any NHS trust or Foundation Trust;
 The NHS Commissioning Board; and
 Any neighbouring Health and Wellbeing Boards.

3.19 There is a minimum period of 60 days for consultation. Hard copies of the 
PNA must be available on request.

Page 103



5

Matters for consideration when making assessments

3.20 Health and Wellbeing Boards must take the following matters under 
consideration when developing their PNAs:
 The demography of the area;
 Whether there is sufficient choice with regard to obtaining pharmaceutical 

services;
 Any different needs of different localities in its area;
 The pharmaceutical services provided in the area of any neighbouring 

HWB which affect the need for pharmaceutical services in its area
 Any other NHS services provided in or outside the area which affect the 

need for pharmaceutical services.
 Likely future needs.

Issues for consideration

Preparing, updating and reviewing the PNA

3.21 While overall responsibility and accountability for pharmaceutical needs 
assessment rests with the Health and Wellbeing Board, the data and skills 
required to undertake the assessment sit across a number of organisations 
including the local authority, CCGs and Greater Manchester Shared Services. 

3.22 Trafford Council’s Director of Public Health has considered how the process 
could best be managed and by whom to provide assurance to the Health and 
Well Being Board that a fit for purpose PNA is put in place. The Director of 
Public Health believes that the Medicines Optimisation team at Greater 
Manchester Shared Services (GMSS) is a sensible organisation to undertake 
the work as they have previous experience in producing PNAs including the 
current Trafford PNA document. 

Risk

3.24 It has been suggested that failure to produce and maintain a robust 
pharmaceutical needs assessment could potentially lead to legal challenge, 
for example if a pharmacies application for a new pharmacy in an area is 
refused on the basis of need set out in an out of date or not fit for purpose 
PNA.

4. Financial Implications and timelines for completion

4.1 The Department of Health’s impact assessment, relating to the 2010 
pharmaceutical needs assessment regulations, estimated that the costs of 
developing a PNA are £61,000. Most of this will represent staff resource as 
this is a time intensive piece of work.

4.2 Neither the public health funding baseline, nor the Clinical Commissioning 
Groups funding baselines reflect this resource. The Health and Wellbeing 
Board has no financial resources of its own to draw upon.

Page 104



6

4.3 The Health and Wellbeing Board are asked to commit to ensure that 
necessary staff resource across each organisation is made available to 
resource the support of this work. The majority of work will be carried out by 
Greater Manchester Shared Services (GMSS) staff, however, they will need 
to have timely access to a wide range of data and a commitment to review 
draft versions of the PNA as they are produced.

4.4 Commissioning the GMSS will require a commitment to ensure sufficient 
funding is provided to deliver this piece of work. This cost has been 
considered within the Public Health grant allocation 2016/17 and work 
commenced on updating the Trafford PNA from April 2016, further update  to 
the HWBB in July 2016 and final production to the January 2017 HWBB 
meeting. 

5. Legal Implications

5.1 The Health and Social Care Act 2012 transferred responsibility to develop and 
update Pharmaceutical Needs Assessments from Primary Care Trusts to 
Health and Wellbeing Boards. Section 128A of the National Health Service 
Act 2006, as amended by the Health and Social Care Act 2012, sets out the 
requirements for Health and Wellbeing Boards to develop and update 
Pharmaceutical Needs Assessments. It also gives the Department of Health 
powers to make regulations.

5.2 The NHS (Pharmaceutical Services and Local Pharmaceutical Services) 
Regulations 2013 set out the legislative basis for developing and updating 
PNAs.1

5.3 Under the NHS (Pharmaceutical Services and Local Pharmaceutical 
Services) Regulations 2013, a person who wishes to provide NHS 
pharmaceutical services must generally apply to NHS England (formerly, the 
NHS Commissioning Board) to be included on a relevant list by proving they 
are able to meet a pharmaceutical need as set out in the relevant PNA. 

5.4 Responsibility for using PNAs as the basis for determining market entry to a 
pharmaceutical list transferred from PCTs to NHS England from 1st April 2013.

6. Recommendation

6.1 The Trafford Health and Well Being Board is asked to note the update on the 
refresh of the Trafford PNA and timelines for completion. 

 

1 http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2013/349/contents/made.

Page 105

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2013/349/contents/made


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2a 17 March 2016
	2b 21 March 2016
	5 BETTER CARE FUND 2016/17
	6 JOINT LEARNING DISABILITY STRATEGY
	Draft Trafford Learning Disability Strategy v3

	7 PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT 2015
	Public Health Annual Report 2015
	_GoBack


	8 INCREASING PHYSICAL ACTIVITY
	9 DOMESTIC ABUSE REPORT
	10a Safer Trafford Partnership Update
	Crime Strategy 2016-18
	STP Performance Dashboard 2015-16
	Safer Trafford Partnership Structure 2015_Revised Nov 2015

	10b Strategic Sport & Physical Activity Partnership Update
	10c Increasing Healthy Life Expectancy
	Increasing Healthy Life Expectancy 2

	11 TRAFFORD PHARMACEUTICAL NEEDS ASSESSMENT (PNA) REFRESH

